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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
GOVERNOR’S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUGS

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9564 1-800-804-0909
TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbes/bdas

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

Fax: 603-271-6105

June 16, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into Sole Source
amendments to existing contracts with the Contractors listed below for the provision of evidence-
informed substance misuse prevention direct services to youth, and their parents and caregivers,
by increasing the total price limitation by $691,317 from $3,489,579 to $4,180,896 and extending
the completion dates from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022 effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Other Funds (Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs).

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the
table below.

Vendor Vendor Location Contract Increase/ Modified G&C Approval
Name Number Amount (Decrease) | Contract
Amount
O: 08/23/17,
Boys and Salem, Item #20
Girls Club Nashua & A1: 06/20/18,
of Greater 160066 Souhegan $870,356 $216,488 $1,086,844 Item #37
Salem Valley A2: 06/24/20,
Item #35
O: 08/23/17,
North Item #20
Northern .
E%ﬁ‘;::gn 154707 | Grafton & $691,195 | $172,065 | $863,260 ﬁ;r.nO::I;Z_,OI 18,
Services Coos County A2: 06124120,
Item #35
0O: 06/21/17,
New Late Item B
Hampshire . A1: 06/20/18,
Teen 166624 Statewide $974,767 $215,655 | $1,190,422 Item #37
Institute A2: 06/24/20,
Item #35
O: 06/21/17,
Rockingham Late Item B
The Upper | puc0ss | COUNtY& | caoo o) $87,109 | $475.291 | a4 06/20/18,
Room Surrounding ! Item #37
Communities A2: 06/24/20,
ltem #35

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Misston is to join communities and families

in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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0: 06/21/17,
Nashua North Late item B
*The Youth & Nashua $0 $565,079 | A1: 06/20/18,
Council | 14886 | sounhigh | $965.079 Item #37
Schools A2: 06/24/20,
Item #35
Total: | $3,489,579 | $691,317 | $4,180,896

* The Department intends to submit an amendment request for The Youth Council contract to
a future Governor and Executive Council meeting.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2022,
with the authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-49-491510-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State Class / Job Current Increased Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Number | (Modified) |(Decreased) | Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
102- Contracts for
2017 500731 Prog Svc 49158502 $194,658 $0 $194,658
Subtotal $194,658 $0 $184,658

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State Class / Job Current Increased Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Number (Modified) | (Decreased) | Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
102- Contracts for 058502
2018 500731 Prog Svc 920585 $836,940 $0 $836,940
102- Contracts for
2019 500731 Prog Sve 92058502 $819,327 $0 $819,327
102- Contracts for
2020 500731 Prog Svc 92058502 $819,327 $0 $819,327
102- Contracts for
2021 500731 Prog Sve 92058502 $819,327 $0 $819,327
102- Contracts for
2022 500731 Prog Svc 92058502 $0 $691,317 $691,317
Subtotal | $3,294,921 $691,317 $3,986,238
Total | $3,489,579 $691,317 | $4,180,896
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See attached Fiscal Details
EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the
contracts beyond their completion dates and there are no renewal options remaining in
the contracts. The Department is seeking to amend the existing contracts on behalf of the
Govermnor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs to continue supporting services
provided through these contracts, which were originally funded by Senate Bill 533 of the
2016 Regular Legislative Session. Further funding for these programs was approved by
the Governor's Commission on February 19, 2021, which did not leave sufficient time to
procure for these services before the existing contracts expire.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing substance misuse prevention
direct services to youth and related programming for their parents and caregivers. The
services provided through these contracts target youth between 10 and 20 years of age
who are at risk of engaging in the misuse of alcohol and the illicit use of drugs. Risk factors
include youth experiencing poor academic performance; behavioral problems at school
or have dropped out of school; involvement with the juvenile justice system; and children
whose parents or caregivers are engaged in the active misuse of alcohol and or illicit
drugs.

Approximately 4,000 individuals will be served from June 30, 2021 through June
30, 2022.

The goal of these contracted prevention programs is to prevent the onset and use
of alcohol and drugs and to increase parental and caregiver knowledge regarding the
negative effects that substance misuse has on their child(ren), improve parental and
caregiver communication skills, and increase parental and caregiver monitoring of their
child(ren)’s behavior and activities. These programs promote positive youth development
with the goal of preventing and reducing the misuse of alcohol, marijuana, prescription
drugs, opioids, stimulants and other drugs.

Each Contractor has chosen approved evidence-informed programs that include
education and counseling, and healthy activities that can be developed as alternatives to
engaging in the misuse of alcohol and drugs and other risky behaviors. Programs include
individual or group education and awareness about the risks and consequences of
substance misuse, assistance in helping youth acquire the skills necessary to resist
negative peer pressure for using alcohol or other drugs, engagement in the development
and promotion of alternative social activities, and developing healthy coping skills to deal
with stressful circumstances in their life at home or school. These programs also engage
parents and caregivers to assist with the skills to promote improved communication within
the family about substance misuse.

All Contractors providing direct prevention services through these contracts are
required to establish ongoing working collaborative relationships with community-based
organizations including, health and social service agencies and schools, and the Regional
Public Health Network in their area. The Contractors are also required to conduct
outreach to youth and their parents and caregivers to make them aware of these services
and how to access them.
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The intended outcomes for participants include;
¢ Increase in the perception of risk of substance use.

¢ Increase in the use of at least two (2) new coping skills to manage
stress.

e Increase in parental communication regarding the risk and
consequences of adolescent substance use.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, approximately 4,000
youth who are at high risk for developing a substance misuse disorder may not have
access to comprehensive substance misuse prevention services.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,
Wnduturc fre

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner



Attachment A

Financial Details

05-95-49-491510-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE
SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

New Hampshire Teen Institute V#166624 PO #1056422
) Revised
State Fiscal . Increasel Decrease Modified
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budaet
Contracts for Prog
2017 102-500734 Sve $107,744 $0 $107,744
Sub-total $107,744 $0 $107,744)
The Upper Room V#174210 PO #1057461
K Revised
State Fiscal . Increase/ Decrease Modified
Year Class/Account = T|t|: . Budget Amount Budget
ontracts for Prog
2017 102-500734 Sve $36,811 $0 $36,811
Sub-total $36,811 $0 $36,811
The Youth Council V#154886 PO #1056421
K Revised
State Fiscal Increase/ Decrease Modified
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for Prog
2017 102-500734 Svc $50,103 30 $50,103
Sub-total $50,103 $0 $50,103,
Total SFY17 $194,658 $0 $194,658

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem V#160066 PO #1058002
K Revised
State Fiscal . Increase/ Decrease Modified
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for Prog
2018 102-500734 Sve $220.892 $0 $220,892
Contracts for Prog
2019 102-500734 Sve $216.488 $0 $216,488
Contracts for Prog
2020 102-500734 Sve $216,488 $0 $216,488
Contracts for Prog
2021 102-500734 Sve $216,488 $0 $216,488
Contracts for Prog
2022 102-500734 Sve $0| $216,488 $216,488
Sub-total $870,356) $216,488) $1,086,844)
New Hampshire Teen Institute V#166624 PO #1056422
K Revised
State Fiscal . Increase/ Decrease Modified
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for Prog
2018 102-500734 Sve $220,058 $0 $220,058
Contracts for Prog
2019 102-500734 Sve $215,655 $0 $215,655
Contracts for Prog
2020 102-500734 Sve $215,655 $0 $215,655
Contracts for Prog
201 102-500734 Sve $215,655 $0 $215,655
Contracts for Prog
2022 102-500734 Sve $0 $215.655 $215,655
Sub-total $867,023) $215,655) $1,082,678|
Attachment A

Financial Detail
Page 1 of 2
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North Country Education Services V#154707 PO #1058007
. Revised
State Fiscal Increase/ Decrease Modified
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budaet
Contracts for Prog
2018 102-500734 Sve $175,000 $0 $175.000,
Contracts for Prog
2019 102-500734 Sve $172,065 $0 $172,065
Contracts for Prog
2020 102-500734 Sve $172,065 $0 $172,065
Contracts for Prog
2021 102-500734 Sve $172,065 30 $172,065
Contracts for Prog
2022 102-500734 Svc $0 $172,065 $172,065
Sub-total $691,195) $172,065 $863,260]
The Upper Room V#174210 PO #1057461
. Revised
State Fiscal Increase/ Decrease Modified
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for Prog
2018 102-500734 sve $90,044 $0 $90,044
Contracts for Prog
2019 102-500734 Sve $87,109 $0 $87,109
Contracts for Prog
2020 102-500734 Sve $87,109 $0 $87,109
Contracts for Prog
2021 102-500734 Sve $87,109 $0 $87,109
Contracts for Prog
2022 102-500734 Sve $0 $87,109 $87,109
Sub-total $351,371 $87,109 $438,480)
The Youth Council V#154886 PO #1056421
. Revised
State Fiscal Increase/ Decrease Modified
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for Prog
2018 102-500734 Sve $130,946 $0 $130,946
Contracts for Prog
2019 102-500734 Sve $128,010 $0 $128,010
Contracts for Prog
2020 102-500734 Svc $128,010 $0 $128,010
Contracts for Prog
201 102-500734 Sve $128,010 $0 $128,010
Contracts for Prog
2022 102-500734 Sve $0| $0| $0|
Sub-total $514,976 $0| $514,976
Grand Total $3,489,579| $691,317 $4,180,896,
Total by Year
Total SFY17 $194,658) $0 $194,658
Total SFY18 $836,940) $0 $836,940]
Total SFY19 $819,327| $0 $819,327
Total SFY20 $819,327| $0 $819,327|
Total SFY21 $819,327| $0 $819,327|
Total SFY22 30, $0 $691,317
|_Grand Total | $3,489,579| o} $4,180,896}
Total by Agency
Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem V#160066 PO #1058002 $870,356 $216,488 $1,086,844
New Hampshire Teen Institute V#166624 PO #1056422 $974,767 $215,655 $1,190,422
North Country Education Services V#154707 PO #1058007 $691,195 $172,065 $863,260
The Upper Room V#174210 PO #1057461 $388,182 $87,109 $475,291
The Youth Council V#154886 PO #1056421 $565,079 $0 $565,079
Total by Agency $3,489,579 $691,317 $4,180,896

Attachment A
Financial Detail
Page 20f 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3

This 3 Amendment to the Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department”) and Boys
and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. ("the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 3
Geremonty Drive, Salem, NH 03079.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 23, 2017, (Item #20), as amended on June 20, 2018, (item #37), as amended June 24, 2020,
(Item #35), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2022
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$1,086,844 _
3. Add Exhibit A, Scope Of Services, Subsection 1.8, to read:
1.8.  The Contractor shall participate in monthly compliance meetings with the Department.
4. Add Exhibit A, Scope Of Services, Subsection 1.9, to read:

1.9.  The Department shall annually perform file reviews of the Contractor operations to ensure
compliance with applicable federal and state laws.

5. Add Exhibit A, Scope Of Services, Subsection 1.10, to read:
1.10. The Department shall provide quarterly training and technical assistance to the Contractor.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent To Payment, Section 4, Subsection 4.1., to
read:

4.1.  The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting documents to the Department no
later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month. The Contractor shall:

4.1.1. Ensure the invoice is presented in a form that is provided by the Department or is
otherwise acceptable to the Department.

4.1.2. Ensure the invoice identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
incurred in the previous month.

4.1.3. Provide supporting documentation of authorized expenses that may include, but is
not limited to, time sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and proof of
expenditures, as applicable.

4.1.4. Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the

supporting documentation for authorized expenses, in order to initiate payment. o

MA

RFP-2017-BDAS-04-SUBST-01-A03 Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. Contractor Initials
6/14/2021

A-5-1.0 Page 1 of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services
7. Add Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent To Payment, Section 9, to read:
9. For the purposes of this Agreement:
9.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a subrecipient, in accordance with
2 CFR 200.331.

8. Add Exhibit B-5 Budget — Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

DS
I Mma
RFP-2017-BDAS-04-SUBST-01-A03 Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. Contractor Initials
A-S5-1.0 Page 2 of 4 Date 6/14/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2021, subject to Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:

6/14/2021 Katjs Fox
ED3DOSB04CE3442
Date Name: Katja Fox

Title: pirector

Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc.

DocuSigned by:

6/14/2021 Mares Lvon
EDA7C2A1614C4D5...
Date Name: Marco Abreu
Title:

Marco Abreu, CEO 6/14/21

RFP-2017-BDAS-04-SUBST-01-A03 Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc.
A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
6/14/2021 [: ?
D5CAQG202E32C4AAE

Date Name: Catherine Pinos

Title: attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Councit of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
RFP-2017-BDAS-04-SUBST-01-A03 Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc.

A-5-1.0 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit B-5 - Amendment #3

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD
Instructions: Fill out the Direct/indirect columns only for Contractor Share (if applicable) and Funded by DHHS. Everything else will automatically populate.
Contractor Name: Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc
Budgst Request for: Substance Misuse Prevantion Direct Services
Budget Period: SFY 2022
Total Program Cost Contractor Shave{ Match - Funded by DHHS contract share

i Rer Dirset Indiract Totat Ditsct indirect i Total Diect:

1. Total Salary/Wages 135,000.00 - $ 135,000.00 - 135,000.00 - 135,000.00

2. Employee Benefits 33,750.00 - $ 33,750.00 - 33,750.00 - 33,750.00

3. Consuttants - - - - - - -

4. Equipment: - - - - - - -
Rental - - - - - - -
Repair and Maintenance - - - - - - -
Purchase/Depreciation s 2,600.00 - 2,600.00 - 2,600.00 - 2,600.00

5. Supplies: $ - - $ - - - - -
Educational 19,746.00 - $ 19,746.00 - 19,746.00 - 19,746.00
Lab - - - - - - -
Pharmacy - - - - - - -
Medical - - - - - - -
Cffice 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 - 5,000.00

6. Travel 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 - 2,000.00

7. Occupancy - - - - - - -

8. Current Expenses - - - - - B -
Telephona - - - - - - -
Postage - - - - - - -
Subscriptions - - - - - - -
Audit and Legal S - - - - - - -
Insurance $ - - - - - - -
Board Expenses - - - - - - -

9. Software - - - - - - -

10._Marketing/Communications - - - - - B -

11, Staff Education and Training 2.030.00 N 2,030.00 N 2,030.00 B 2,030.00

12._Subgcontracts/Agreements - - - - - - -

13, Other (specitic detars mandatorz) 3 - IS 16,362 .00 16.362.00 3 - B 16,362.00 16,362.00

- g - - $ - - - -
N 3 N N - - N N
N S N B N B N N N
- —
TOTAL $ 200,126.00 | § 16,362.00 | $ 216,488.00 - $ 200,126.00 16,362.00 216,488.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 82%

Boys and Girls Ciub of Greater Saiem, Inc.

RFP-2017-BDAS-04-SUBST-01-A03
Exhibit B-6 - Amendment #3
Pago 1of1

08
ma
Cortractor Initials

6/14/2021
Date
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF
GREATER SALEM, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on
February 01, 1965. T further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and

is in good standing as far as this office is concemned.

Business ID: 64337
Certificate Number: 0004789714

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 28th day of January A.D, 2020,

Borfodon

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State
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Dogy'éilg‘;_r\\’?‘r\velope 1D0: A1628091-4A05-4602-9CFD-90BB3A990ED7 QuickStart
Filing History (€) Back to Home (ontine)
Business Name Business ID
Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. 64337
Filing# Filing Date Effective Date Filing Type Annual Report Year
0004838691 03/12/2020 03/12/2020 Nonprofit Report 2020
0004776153 01/16/2020 01/16/2020 Annual Report Reminder N/A
0003110721 04/14/2015 04/14/2015 Nonprofit Report 2015
0000736290 12/27/2010 12/27/2010 Reinstatement 2010
0000736289 03/01/2006 03/01/2006 Admin Dissolution/Suspension N/A
0000736288 03/07/2005 03/07/2005 Amendment N/A
0000736287 07/02/2001 07/02/2001 Reinstatement 2000
0000736286 02/01/2001 02/01/2001 Withdraw/Dissolve/Cancel N/A
0000736285 01/10/1996 01/10/1996 Annual Report 1995
0000736284 01/01/1996 01/01/1996 Annual Report 1995
0000736283 05/02/1991 05/02/1991 Reinstatement 1990
0000736282 02/01/1991 02/01/1991 Withdraw/Dissolve/Cancel N/A
0000736281 12/22/1986 12/22/1986 Amendment N/A
0000736280 12/30/1985 12/30/1985 Annual Report N/A
0000736279 - 06/03/1977 06/03/1977 Annual Fee N/A
0000736278 02/01/1965 02/01/1965 Business Formation N/A

Page 1 of 1, records 1to 16 of 16

Back

H : H ERHTIRS Contact Us (fonline/Home/ContactUs)
Version 2.1 © 2014 PCC Technology Group, LLC, All Rights Reserved.

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/Businessinquire/FilingHistory?businessiD=45248

mn
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

l, David Demers , hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of __The Boys & Girls Club of Greater Sale
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a mesting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and

held on __May 25%, . 2021, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date)
VOTED: That _Marco Abreu, CEO (may list more than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of __The Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State

{Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in gentracts with the w Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:_6/14/21___ L0 &
natre,of Elécted Office
Name vigDemers
Title: Claef Volunteer Offic

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
06/10/2021

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. TH!S
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUGER CONIACT  Lynn Blanchard, CIC,CISR
PHONE _ FAX .
FIAY/Cross Insurance (MG No. Extl: (603) 669-3218 (AIC, No): (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street B NEss, LBlanchard@crossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 INSURER A: Church Mutual Insurance Company
INSURED INSURER B : Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-
Boys and Girls of Greater Salem INSURER ¢ : Hanover Ins Group
3 Geremonty Drive INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Salem NH 03079 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: __ 20-21 Al Lines Salem REVISION NUMBER:
THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
TSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POL
'Ersg TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WvD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) (MI?A/E&%}(YEY)\(/’;) LIMITS
><| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
l CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) s 1,000,000
MED EXP (Any one person) S 20,000
A 0365489-02-12949 07/01/2020 | 07/01/2021 | persoNAL & ADV INJURY | 5 1:000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
X poicy [:l fEcr [___I Loc PRODUCTS - coMPioP GG | s 1:000.000
X orHer: Sexual Misconduct Sexual Misconduct s 1,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea vaccidenﬂ s 1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) S
OWNED SCHEDULED -00- ;
A AUTOS ONLY AUTOS 0365489-09-129431 07/01/2020 | 07/01/2021 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
>¢| HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE S
| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)
Medical payments s 5,000
X[ umBRELLALIAE | XX occur EACH OCCURRENCE s 5,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 0365489-81-129430 07/01/2020 | 07/01/2021 | ssGreGATE s 5,000,000
DED l X[ ReTenTioN 5 10,000 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION xl PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN STATUTE ER 005000
B |OFHGEREMEER excLubeDy o TVE NIA HCHS20200000208 (3a.) NH 02/01/2020 | 02/01/2021 | E-k: EACHACCIDENT s
(Mandatory in NH) EL DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE |5 1,000,000
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § VY%
Limit $2,000,000
D&O/EPLI
Cc LHV8774541 10 07/01/2020 | 07/01/2021

insured.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
State of NH Department of Health and Human Services are included as additional insured with respects to CGL as required by written contract with named

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301-3852

|

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Our Mission:

To inspire and enable all young people, especially those who need us
most, to realize their full potential as productive, caring, responsible
citizens.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and
2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on thesc financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are frec from material misstatement.

An audit involves pcrforming procedurcs to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or crror.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statcments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rcasonablcness of significant accounting estimates
made by managcment, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainced 1s sufficient and appropriate to providc a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statcments refcrred to above present fairly, in all matcrial respects, the
financial position of Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the

changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then endcd in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Travis Terry & Company, PC
Salem, NH

October 28, 2020
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
2020 2019
ASSETS
Cash $ 509,973 $ 508,576
Investments 14,853 14,258
Accounts receivable 44,509 52,825
Undeposited funds 268 23,700
Prepaid expenses 8,302 6,361
Land, building and equipment, net (Note 4) 2,720,964 2,852,175

TOTAL ASSETS § 3,298,869 $ 3,457,895

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 55,134 $ 72,108
Credit cards payable 712 9,005
Accrued expenses 10,489 7,239
Accrued payroll 27,212 30,738
Deferred revenue 147,826 287,271
Current maturities of long-term debt 59,897 57,418

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 301,270 463,779

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 840,275 563,644
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 840,275 563,644
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,141,545 1,027,423
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 2,137,324 2,430,472
With donor restrictions 20,000 -
TOTAL NET ASSETS 2,157,324 2,430,472

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 3,298,869 $ 3,457,895

Sece accompanying notes.
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
REVENUES AND GAINS
Program service fees $ 947,405 991,789
Game of chance income, net of dircet expenses in the amounts
of $5,443 for 2020, and $5,438 for 2019 72,005 94,478
Grants 281,193 184,167
Special events, net of direct expenscs in the amounts 111,855 430,152
of $55,222 for 2020, and $112,171 for 2019
Contributions 237,918 55,667
Membership dues 38,579 52,314
Rental income 32,208 35,143
Other income 394 -
Investment return, nct (7,338) 982
TOTAL REVENUES AND GAINS WITHOUT DONOR
RESTRICTIONS 1,714,219 1,844,692
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS
Contributions for new swimming pool - 300,357
Grants for ncw swimming pool - 200,000
Contributions for utilities - 77,500
DHHS Grants - 210,619
TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT
WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 1,714219 2,633,168
EXPENSES
Program services 1,496,520 1,660,125
Supporting services 530,847 494,794
Total Expenses 2,027,367 2,154,919
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (313,148) 478,249
OTHER EXPENSES
Loss on disposal of asset - (33,850)
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSE - (33,850)
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Contributions 20,000 701,602
Net assets released from donor restrictions - (788,476)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 20,000 (86,874)
(Decrease) Increase in Net Assets (293,148) 357,525
Net Asscts, Beginning of Year 2,430,472 2,072,947
Net Assets, End of Year § 2,137,324 2,430,472

See accompanying notes.
3
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORTING SERVICES
Educational Athletic Total Management Total
Program Program Program and Program &
Activities Activities Services General Fundraising Support Services
Salaries $ 623,333 $ 116,549 $ 739,882 $ 276,857 $ 62,880 1,079,619
Depreciation and amortization 140,702 - 140,702 - - 140,702
Program supplies and expenses 198,672 52,529 251,201 9,556 - 260,757
Employee benefits 41,600 - 41,600 42,467 22,388 106,455
Maintenance and repairs 39,914 - 39914 18,032 4,510 62,456
Utilities 83,427 - 83,427 - - 83,427
Payroll taxes 59,977 2,623 62,601 20,335 4,492 87,428
Transportation 12,948 - 12,948 - - 12,948
Professional fees 32,381 - 32,381 17,536 22 49,939
Insurance 23,181 1,489 24,670 24,780 - 49,450
Interest expense 24,281 - 24281 - - 24,281
Pension expense 23,050 1,714 24,764 8,939 3,120 36,823
Dues 11,993 - 11,993 6,133 360 18,486
Office supplies and expenses 4,365 - 4,365 5,877 398 10,640
Training, conferences, and meetings 1,769 - 1,769 1,588 - 3,357
Miscellaneous - - - - 430 430
Meals and entertainment 22 - 22 147 - 169
Total Expenses $ 1,321,615 $ 174,904 $ 1,496,520 $ 98,600 2,027,367

Sece accompanying notes.
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Salaries

Depreciation and amortization
Program supplies and expenses
Employee benefits
Maintenance and repairs
Utilities

Payroll taxes

Transportation

Professional fees

Insurance

Interest expense

Pension expense

Dues

Office supplies and expenses
Training, conferences, and meetings
Miscellaneous

Meals and entertainment

Total Expenses
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORTING SERVICES
Educational Athletic Total Management Total
Program Program Program and Program &
Activities Activities Services General Fundraising Support Services

$ 725,732 $ 89,047 $ 814,779 § 233,619 $ 60,046 1,108,444
137,464 - 137,464 - - 137,464
247,560 59,496 307,056 13,107 - 320,163
44,071 - 44,071 44,901 23,768 112,740
49,706 - 49,706 18,571 4,043 72,320
92,352 - 92,352 - - 92,352
57,842 10,288 68,131 17,365 4,267 89,763
12,133 - 12,133 - - 12,133
30,113 - 30,113 30,067 665 60,845
45,975 494 46,469 2,472 494 49,435
26,500 - 26,500 - - 26,500
22,266 1,580 23,846 8,675 3,000 35,521
2,176 - 2,176 14,627 460 17,263
2,205 - 2,205 10,776 225 13,206
3,124 - 3,124 2,613 35 5,772
- - - - 700 700
- - - 235 63 298
$ 1,499,220 $ 160,905 $ 1,660,125 $ 397,028 $ 97,766 2,154919

Sec accompanying notcs.
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Decrease) increase in net assets $ (293,148) § 357,525
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 140,702 137,464
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments 7,338 (982)
Loss on disposal of asset - 33,850
Interest reinvested (595) (926)
Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Accounts receivable 8,316 31,515
Undeposited funds 23,432 31,488
Prepaid expenses (1.941) 3,682
(Decrease) increase in operating liabilities
Accounts payable (16,974) 31,636
Credit cards payable (8,293) 8,979
Accrued expenses (276) (7,079)
Deferred revenue (139,445) 50,972
Other liabilities 12,660 11,957
NET CASH (USED) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (268,224) 690,081

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for the purchase of fixed assets (9,489) (601,683)

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (9,489) (601,683)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings on long-term debt 414,959 30,846
Principal payments on long-term debt (135,849) (57,833)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 279,110 (26,987)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,397 61,411

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 508,576 447,165

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 509,973 S 508,576

See accompanying notes.
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. (the Organization) maintains a club
for members and families without distinction of race, color, creed, cultural heritage,
political beliefs, handicaps or marital status, which will inspire and enable all
young people, especially from disadvantaged circumstances, to realize their full
potential as productive, responsible, and caring citizens. The Organization provides
a safe place to learn and grow; ongoing relationships with caring adult
professionals; life enhancing programs and character development experienccs;
hope and opportunity.

The Organization rcceives revenucs from grants provided by the federal and state
governments and private grants. Revenues are also derived from private
contributions, membership dues, fundraising events, including charitable gaming
and program service fecs.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting.

Basis of Presentation

Pursuant to December 15, 2017, under ASU 2016-14, The Boys and Girls Club of
Greater Salem, Inc. is required to report information regarding its financial position
and activities according to two classes of net asscts that arc based upon the
existence or absence of restrictions on usc that are placed by its donors: Net assets
without donor restrictions or Nct assets with donor restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly
liquid investments available for current use with initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
7
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

The State of New Hampshire requires cash related to Texas Hold ‘Em game of
chance operations to be held in a separate account. The Club is in compliance with
this requirement. The balance in the Texas Hold” Em account as of June 30, 2020
and 2019 was $3,570 and $3,609, rcspectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. maintains several bank accounts at two
banks. Accounts at an institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000.

Accounts Reccivable

Accounts receivables are stated at the amount management cxpects to collect from
outstanding balances. Balances that are still outstanding after management has
used rcasonable collection efforts arc written off through a bad debt charge.
Accounts receivable includes program and service reccivables at June 30, 2020 and
2019 in the amount of $44,509 and $52,825, respectively.

Investments

Investments in marketable sccuritics with readily determinable fair valucs and all
investments in debt sccurities arc reported at their fair values in the statements of
financial position. Unrcalized gains and losses are included in the change in net
assets. Investment incomc and gains restricted by a donor arc reported as increases
in unrestricted net asscts if the restrictions are met (cither by passage of time or by
use) in the reporting period in which the income and gains are recognized. Short-
term investments consist of debt sccuritics with original maturities of twelve
months or less. Long-term investments consist of debt sccurities with original
maturities greater than twelve months.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
8



DocuSign Envelope ID: A1628091-4A05-4602-9CFD-90BB3AS90EQ7

BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenues and assets in the period
received. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
Net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in
which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are
reported as increases in Net assets with donor restrictions in accordance with the
nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, previously restricted funds in
Net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to Net assets without donor
restrictions. Conditional promiscs to give are recognized only when the conditions
on which they depend are substantially mct and the promises become
unconditional.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and cquipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition or fair
market valuc at the date of donation. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the rclated asscts, ranging from a period of three
to fifty years, using accclerated and straight-line mcthods of depreciation.
Expenditures for additions, renewals, and betterment of buildings and equipment
that extend the life of the asset arc capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and
repairs are expensed against operations, as incurrcd.

Long-Lived Assets

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that entities assess
events or changes in circumstances, which indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. The Organization’s assessment resulted in no effect
on the Organization’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Contributced Services

The value of contributed scrvices of volunteers for administrative, fundraising and
program services 1s not reflected in thesc statements since therc is no objective
mcasurements available for such services. Contributed items arc recorded at their
estimated fair market valuc at the date of donation.

Expenses by function have been allocated among program and supporting scrvices
on a basis of dircct costs and estimatcs made by management.

Sce Independent Auditor’s Report
9
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Contributions
Contributions received are recorded as Net assets without donor restrictions or Net

assets with donor restrictions depending on the cxistence or nature of any donor
restrictions.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenscs for the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 were $305 and $426, respectively.

Use of Estimatcs

Management uses cstimatcs and assumptions in preparing financial statements.
Those estimates are assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes
The Organization is a not-for-profit organization that is cxempt from income taxes
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the Internal

Revenue Service as other than a private foundation.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of prepaid summer camp and preschool registration for
the fiscal ycar ended Junc 30, 2020 reccived by the Organization on or before June
30, 2020. Deferred revenue as of Junc 30, 2020 and 2019 totaled $147,826 and
$287,271, respectively.

Reclassification

Certain accounts in the prior-ycar financial statements have been reclassified for
comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in current-year financial
statements.

Compensated Absences

The ecmployees of the Organization are entitled to paid vacations, sick days and
personal days off. It is impracticable to estimate the amount of compensation for
future abscnees, and accordingly, no liability has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements. The Organization’s policy is to recognize the
costs of compensatcd abscnces when actually paid to employces.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2: INVESTMENTS

The fair values of long-tcrm investments totaled $14,853 and $14,258 at June 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

The following schedule summarizes investment returns and their classification in
the statements of activities for the year ended:

June 30, 2020
Net Assets Net Assets With
Without Donor Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Intcrest Income $ 2,849 $ - $ 2,849
Unrealized Loss $ (10,187) $ - $ (10,187)
Net Investment Loss ~ $ (7,338) § - $  (7,338)
June 30, 2019
Net Assets Net Assets With
Without Donor Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Intercst Income $ 3264 $ - $ 3,264
Unrealized Loss $ (2,282) § - §  (2,282)
Net Investment Gain ~ $ 982 § - $ 982

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The fair value measurement accounting litcraturc cstablishces a fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniqucs used to measure fair valuc. This
hicrarchy consists of three broad levels: Level 1 inputs consist of unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets and have the highest priority. Level 2
inputs consist of observable inputs other than quoted prices for identical assets
(Level 1). Level 3 inputs arc unobscrvablc and have the lowest priority. The Plan
uscs appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the
fair value of its investments. When availablc, the Plan measures fair value using
Level 1 inputs becausc they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair
value. Level 2 inputs are used for investments for which Level 1 inputs were not
available. Level 3 inputs would only be used if Level 1 or Level 2 inputs were not
available. There are no plan asscts requiring the usc of Level 2 or Level 3 inputs for
the periods presented.

The investments are rcported at fair value. Shares of mutual funds are valued at the
net asset value of shares held by the Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. at
year-end. The following presents the assets at fair value for the years ended June
30, 2020 and 2019.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable  Unobservable
Asscts Inputs Inputs
Description  6/30/2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Mutual
Funds Held
For Sale $14.853 $14.853 $ - 5 -
Total 14,853 $14,853 $ - $ -
Fair Valuc Measurcments at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Idcntical Obscrvable  Unobservable
. Asscts Inputs Inputs
Description  6/30/2019 (Level 1) (Lcvel 2) (Level 3)
Mutual
Funds Held
For Sale $14,258 $14,258 $ - $ -
Total $14,258 $14,258 $ - $ -

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 4: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets available for general cxpenditures within onc year of the
statements of financial position date at June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the

following:
2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 509,973 $ 508,576
Investments 14,853 14,258
Accounts receivables 44,509 52,825
Undeposited funds 269 23,700

Total financial assets at year-end 569,604 599,359
Less net assets with donor restrictions 0 0
Less investments (14,853) (14,258)

Total financial asscts available to mcet cash

needs for general expenditurc within one year $ 554,751 $ 585,101

The Organization's financial asscts have been reduced by amounts not available for
general use becausc of donor-imposcd restrictions for a specified purpose within
one year of the statement of financial position date. The Organization’s financial
assets have not been reduced by amounts not available for general usc because of
donor imposed restrictions subject to the passage of time as the Organization
rcasonably expects to collect all contributions receivable during the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 5: LAND, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT

Land, building and cquipment consist of the following components at June 30, 2020

and 2019:
2020 2019

Land $ 8,310 $ 8,310
Building & Improvements 4,185,369 4,185,369
Equipment & Furnishings 514,431 504,941
Vchicles 123,150 123,149

4,831,260 4,821,769
Accumulated Depreciation (2,110,296) (1,969,594)

$ 2,720,964 $ 2,852,175

Dcepreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $140,702
and $137,464, respectively.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
13
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 6: MORTGAGE PAYABLE

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

5.00% installment note, payable in monthly principal
and interest installments in the amount of $5,520. On
The current interest was adjusted to the Wall Strect
Journal Prime Rate with a floor of 5.00%. The rate
will be adjusted every three years thereafter.

1.00% installment note, payable in monthly principal
and interest installments in the amount of $632.47.

Intercst free installment note, payable in monthly
principal installments in thc amount of $856.84.

On April 13, 2020, the entity reccived a loan in the
amount of $264,959 from the Small Business
Administration (SBA)as part of Coronavirus Aid,
Relief and Economic Security Act’s Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP). The loan is unsecured,
nonrecourse, accrues at 1.00% interest per annum,
with Bank of New England, with a due date of April
5,2022. Under the terms of the loan, a portion or all
of the loan 1s forgivablc to the cxtent that loan
proceeds are used to fund qualifying payroll, rent and
utilities during the designated period sct by the SBA.

Thirty-year SBA 2.75% installment note, payable in
monthly principal and interest installments in the
amount of $641, with all tangible and intangible
personal property of the entity as collateral.

Total

Less: current maturitics

Long-term debt, net of current maturitics

$

2020 2019

453,188 $ 573,185
13,174 18,744
18,851 29,133

264,959 .

150,000 ;

900,172 621,062
59,897 57,418

840,275 § 563,644

Maturities for long-term debt in subsequent calendar ycars are as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2021 59,897
2022 61,197
2023 48,970
2024 51,018
2025 53,243
Thereafter 625,847
$ 900,172

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 7: NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

The Organization had $20,000 and $0 in Net assets with donor restrictions for the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. The funds as of June 30, 2020 consisted of
$10,000 for the purchase of a fifteen passenger van, as well as another $10,000 to
be used for the Little Ambassador Program.

NOTE 8: UNRELATED BUSINESS INCOME TAXES

The Organization has analyzed its tax positions and has determined that there are
no unrecognized tax obligations to record.

NOTE 9: RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization sponsors a Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (401a). The
Organization contributes five percent of salarics for eligible employces. The cost
for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 were $36,823 and $35,521,
respectively. The Organization also has a 403(b) plan which also allows
participants to contribute to the plan on a tax deferred basis. At this time, therc arc
no 403(b) contributions.

NOTE 10: LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Organization also leases space and equipment for Texas Hold “Em
tournaments pursuant to NH charitable gaming laws. This lease is for five dates in
2020 and onc date in 2019. The rent is $500 per game date. This rent is cxpected to
be offset by reported revenue from charitable gaming.

NOTE 11: FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

The costs of providing the various programs and activities have been summarized
on a functional basis in the statcment of activitics. Accordingly, certain costs have
becn allocated among the programs and supporting services bencfited.

NOTE 12: UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS

The Organization follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxcs, which provides guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in the Organizations financial statements. The guidance
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return, and also provides guidance on de-rccognition, classification,
intercst and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.

Sce Independent Auditor’s Report
15
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BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GREATER SALEM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 12: UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS (Continued)

As of June 30, 2020, there were no uncertain tax positions that require either
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

NOTE 13: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 28, 2020, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. In response to an order by the
Governor of the State of New Hampshire related to the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic, in March 2020, most local businesscs were required to close operations
indefinitely. The Company was classificd as an cssential business and was
permitted to remain open. The Company does not know the overall effect on its
operations from the COVID-19 pandemic. An estimated financial impact duc to
COVID-19 cannot be made.

Sece Independent Auditor’s Report
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BOYS & GIRLS CLUB

OF GREATER SALEM

Corlebrating Cloer D feeers

First Last

1 Leeann Brooks

2 Robert  Carrier

3 Michael Comerford
_4.Erin Daley

5Tony  Deluca

6 David Demers

7 Jim Desjardins

8 Joel Dotan

9 Kathryn Ferguson
10.doanne Flynn

1 Kate Hennigar
12 Ryan Horgan
13 Steve  Kurek
14 Eric “'Leutéfi'tz
15 Michae! ’Lindquist
16 Chris Nicoti
17 Melanie Norcross
18 Michael Pedro, MD
19 Kerianne Pereira
20 Mary Reese
21 Frank  Storniolo
22 Lisa Walker

Board Position
Board Member
Board Member
First V.P.

Business

Brooks Law

Camer Family Funeral Homc ]
[Premier Mortgage Lendmg

Board Memb"é»r

_ Board Member

CV.QO.

Board Member
Board Member
Board Member

Haverhill Bank

8ank of New England

D &M Real Estate
Darsy Cleaners

Board Member
Board Membef
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Past C.V.0.
Secretary
Board Member
Board Member
Executive Board
Treasurer
Board Member

BFS Assoc:atps

Rockmgham Toyota/HDnda
Friedr. Dick Corp

Pemucket ,B ank

Bank of America '",f
Canobie Lake Park

MD Esthetics
Pentucket Bank

Agero 17 Conéultam B

Litman Gerson Assoc LLpP

Edward Jones

2020-2021 Board of Directors Roster
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MONICA GALLANT

EXPERIENCE: Certified Prevention Specialist with expertise in community outreach; programming and
management supervision; development of youth led prevention network; facilitation of
community building and collaboration; utilization of Strategic Prevention Framework; logic
model development; grant writing; utilization of Social Ecological Model in system collaboration
and coalition development with focus on youth substance use prevention and mental health
awareness; Implementing capacity building with Leading by Convening Framework.

EDUCATION: Master of Prevention Science (In Progress) University of Oklahoma 2019 - Present
Post Baccalaureate Special Education Certification, Granite State College 2017
Granite State College Bachelor of Arts in English Teacher Education 2015
CCAR Recovery Coaches Academy 2017
Community Anti-Drug Coalition Academy Graduate

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:
s Director of Prevention Services, Boys & Girls Club of Souhegan Valley (2017 — Present)

o Responsibilities include implementing environmental prevention strategies for BGCSV;
coordinating CAST Coalition activities including implementing coalition building utilizing the
Leading by Convening Framework; overseeing Youth Led Prevention Network; , Director of
Children’s Resiliency Retreat Program; overseeing delivery of social emotional learning
curricutum,

e Director, Community Action for Safe Teens Coalition (2011 — Present)

o Responsibilities include outreach to community stakeholders, programming,
management/supervision, youth development, facilitating community building and
collaboration, strategic planning, grant writing, grant management, youth substance use
prevention.

s Coordinator, Nashua Prevention Coalition, Nashua NH (2013-2017)

o Responsibilities inciude programming, management/supervision, youth development,
facilitating community building and collaboration, strategic planning, grant writing, with a focus
on substance misuse awareness and prevention.

e Special Education Associate, Heron Pond Elementary School, Milford NH (2009 ~ 2016)

o Responsibilities include working with students with developmental, behavioral and emotional

disabilities. Provide support with reading, mathematics and basic life skills.
e Commercial Lines Manager, Bechard Insurance Agency {1981-1992)

o Responsibilities include managing employees, servicing commercial accounts, developing policy

and procedures.

VOLUNTEER WORK:
o First Church of Nashua: Christian Education teacher, Youth Group Advisor and Outreach
Committee Secretary
o 4-H Group Leader
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Aaron St Cyr

Prevention Specialist
Salem, NH 03079
stcyraaronl@gmail.com
16034756836

Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Work Experience

Prevention Specialist
Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salern NH - Salern, NH
January 2021 to Present

« Plans and oversees the administration of club-wide Positive Action and Parenting Wisely programming,
while supporting Boys and Girls Club Movements Youth Development Strategy reflective of 5 core areas.
* Mentor members ages 12-18 throughout the year

« Recruit mentors/volunteers/speakers for the Teen Center program.

Teen Center Director
Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem - Salem, NH
November 2020 to jJanuary 2021

» Responsible for overseeing the entirety of the Teen Center and all programs within

» Oversee staff

« Run efficient programming with middle schoo! and high school students

» Organize events open to the families and community

« Inspire and enable youth to reach their potential as adults through programs that demonstrate
everyday life skills

» Create a safe and fun work atmosphere for staff along with the children

» Lead by example

» Efficiently communicate with supervisors and other staff members to coordinate daily programs

» Communicate with parents and develop healthy relationships with families, and school staff involved
with the club

» On the spot creativity to always keep members engaged in programming

« Always act as a professional role model and take pride in caring for members of all ages

» Create weekly activity and staff schedules to ensure efficient programming throughout the Teen Center

Site Coordinator
Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem - Salem, NH
August 2017 to September 2020

» Supervise staff and children throughout the after school program
» Create a safe and enjoyable environment for both children and staff

» Implement Boys & Girls Club program curriculum
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« Assist with homework help and engage children in educational programming

= Communicate with other staff members and collaborate on curriculum development

« Monitor parent pick up procedures

+ Develop relationships with parents and schoo! staff to ensure communication and a positive outcome
of the program

« Use on the spot creativity to keep members engaged with or without equipment provided

Youth Development Professional
Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem - Salem, NH
June 2013 to August 2017

» Supervise members/children in program area(s) .

* Maintain program goals while ensuring the health and safety of members.

« Make sure members: Participate in a variety of programs; look to staff and other members for advice
and guidance when encountering problems; supervise, respect, and recognize their behaviors.

« Organize activities for members/children that are fun, engaging, instructional and add competition
while incorporating team building skills

= Ensure safety, positive values and ethical behavior through programs.

» Act as a professional role model, in and out of the work environment.

Education

High school diploma
Salem High School - Salem, NH
September 2012 to June 2016

Skills

+ Mentoring

Certifications and Licenses

First Aid Certification

Groups

Keystone Club
September 2012 to june 2016

* Provide eadership throughout the Boys and Giris Club while focusing on: Academic success; career
preparation; community service,

» National Keystone Conference- Teens across the world join together to discuss relevant issues in
teens and children and develop skills to support and inspire change throughout the Boys and Girls Club
communities
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Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc.

(for NH Boys & Girls Clubs)

Key Personnel

Staff

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Aaron St. Cyr Prevention Specialist $55,000 100% $55,000
BGC Greater Salem
Monica Gallant CPS, Prevention Coordinator | $56,000 50% $28,000
BGC Souhegan Valley
Assorted Specialized | BGC Nashua $52,000 100% $52,000




f.ori A. Shibirette
Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUGS

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9564

1-800-804-0909

Fax: 603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.¢hhs.nh.gov/dcbes/bdas

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

June 10, 2020

REQUESTED ACTION

5

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below for the provision of evidenced informed
substance misuse prevention direct services to youth, and their parents and caregivers, by
increasing the total price limitation by $819,327 from $2,670,252 to $3,489,579 and by extending the
completion dates from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval.
The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017, Late ltem B, and
most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 20, 2018, item #37.100% Other

Funds.
Vendor Vendor Location Contract Increase! Modified | G&C Approval
Name Number Amount | (Decrease) } Contract
i Amount
Boys and Salem, O; 08/23/17,
Giris Club of Nashua & Item #20
Greater 160066 Souhegan $653.868 $216,488 $870,356 A1: 06/20/18,
Salem Valley Item #37
. /
c’iﬁ',f{’,y 154707 gg&fg $519,130 | $172065 | $691.195 :t)e"?i/?zg -
Education Coos Count ' ' ‘ A1 06/20/18,
Services ounty Iltem #37
New ’ 0O: 06/21/17,
Hampshire . i Late ltem B
Teen 166624 Statewide $759,112 $215,655 $974,767 A1: 0820118,
._Institute tem #37
Rockingham 0: 06/21/17,
The Upper County & Late ltem B
Room | 298053 | oy rounding | $301.073 | 387109 | $388.182 | a4 0620118,
Communities item #37
Nashua North 0: 06/21/17,
The Youth & Nashua Late ltem B
Councit | 194886 | southHigh | 437069 | cio5010 | ss65.079 | At 06120118,
Schools Iltem #37
Total: | $2,670,252 | $819,327 | $3,489,679

Funds are available in the following account(s) for State Fiscal Year 2021, with authority to
adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office if needed and juslified.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

05-95-49-491610-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,

GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State Class / Job Current increased | Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Number {Modified) |(Decreased) | Modified
Year ¢ Budget Amount Budget
102- Contracts for
2017 500731 Prog Svc 49158502 $194,658 $0 $194,658
Subtotal $194,658 $0 $194,658

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,

GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)
State Class / Job Current Increased Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Number {Modified) | (Decreased) | Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
102- Contracts for 92058502 .
2018 500734 Prog Svc 2058 $836,940 $0 $836,940
102- Contracts for
2019 500731 Prog Sve 92058502 $819,327 $0 $819,327
102- Contracts for
2020 500731 Prog Sve 92058502 $819,327 $0 $819,327
102- Contracts for
2021 500731 Prog Sve 92058502 $0 $819,327 | $819,327
Subtotal | $2,475,594 $819,327 $3,294 921
Total | $2,670,252 $819,327 $3,489,579

See Fiscal Details for Distribution of Funds

EXPLANATION

As previously stated, the origihal contract was approved by Governor and Council on June
21, 2017, Late Item #B. It was then subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on
June 20, 2018, Item #37. ;

The purpose of this request is to exercise a renewal option to continue providing substance
misuse prevention direct services to youth and related programming for their parents and caregivers.
Targets for this program include youth between ten (10} and twenty (20) years of age who are at risk
of engaging in the misuse of alcohol and the illicit use of drugs. Risk factors include youth
experiencing poor academic performance, behavioral problems at school or that have dropped out
of school that are involved with the juvenile justice system and children whose parents or caregivers
are engaged in the active misuse of alcohol and or iflicit drugs.
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His Exceliency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 30of 3

The opioid epidemic in New Hampshire led to the passage of Senate Biil 533 (2016) making
additional resources available to the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Prevention, Treatment and Recovery. The Commission identified a portion of the funding aflocated
under SB 533 for prevention direct services that target youth, including those proposed in this
request.

Approximately 2,000 individuals will be served from June 30, 2020 through June 30, 2021,
The goal of these contracted prevention programs is to prevent the onset and use of alcohol and
drugs and to increase parental and caregiver knowledge regarding the negative effects that
substance misuse has on their child(ren), improving parental and caregiver knowiedge and
communication skills, and to increase parental and caregiver monitoring of their child(ren)'s behavior
and activities. These programs promote positive youth development with the goal of preventing and
reducing the misuse of atcohol, marijuana, prescription drugs and opioids.

Each vendor has chosen approved evidenced informed programs that include education and
counseling, and information on healthy activities that can be developed as alternatives to engaging
in the misuse of alcehol and drugs and other risky behaviors. Programs include individual or group
education and awareness about the serious and sometimes deadly consequence of substance
misuse-and assistance in helping youth acquire the skills necessary to resist negative peer pressure
for using alcohol or other drugs, their engagement in the development and promotion of aiternative
social activities, and to assist participating youth in developing other mechanisms for coping with
stressful circumstances in their life at home or school. These programs also involve parents and
caregivers to promote improved communication within the family about this topic.

All vendors providing direct prevention services through these contracts are required to
establish ongoing working collaborative relationships with community-based organizations including,
health and social service agencies. and schools, and the Regional Public Health-Network in their
area. The contractors are also required to conduct outreach to youth and their parents and caregivers
fo make them aware of these services and how to access them.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions, of the original contracts, the
parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and
Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the one
(1) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, approximately 4,000
youth who are at high risk for developing a substance misuse disorder may not have access to
comprehensive substance misuse prevention services.

Area served: Statewide,

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds.

in the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitt

ori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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Attachment A
Financial Details

05-95-49-491510-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE
SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG 8 ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds}

New Hampshire Teen Inslitule V#166624 PO #1056422
Revised
State Fiscal Incraase/ Dacrease Modified
Year Class/Account Titte Budget Amount Audaat
Contracts for Prog
2017 102-500734 Sve $107.744 $0 $107.744
Sub-total $107,744 SO $107.744
The Upper Room V174210 PO #1057461
Fiscal Revise
State Fisca . incroase/ Decroase Modifled
Year Ciass/Account Title Budget Amount Bodost |
Contracts for Prog
2017 102-500734 Sve $36,811 50 $36,811
Sub-total $36,811 $0 $36,811
The Youth Council V#154886 PO #1056421
State Fiecal “Revised
/ '
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Incroase! Decreasa h;c::::::!
Contracts for Prog
2007 102-500734 Sve $50,103 50 $50,103
Sub-total $50,103 30 $50.103
Total SFY17 $194,658, 30 $194,658

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOC!AL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, BUREAU OF CRUG & ALCOHOL SVYCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds}

Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem VV#160066 PO #1058002
State Fiscal g
1 I D Modifi
Your ClassiAccount Titio Budget Amount ncrease/ Decrease p.?.(:( ied
Conltracts for Prog
2018 102-500734 Sve $220,892 S0 $220,892
Contracts for Prog
2019 102-500734 Sve $216,488 $Q $216,488
Contracts for Prog
2020 102-50071}4 Sve $216.488 $0 $216.488
Contracls for Prog
2021 102-500734 Sve 20 $216,488 $216,488
Sub-total $653,868 3216,488 $870.356!
New Hampshire Teen Institute V4166624 PO #1056422
State Flacal ~ Kevised
8: sca tncroasel Decroase Modified
o0ar Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budaet ¥
Contracts for Prog
2018 102-500734 Sve $220,058 30 $220,058
Contracts for Prog
2019 102-500734 Sve $215.655 $0 $215.655
Contracis for Prog
2020 102-500734 Sve $215,655 30 $215,655
Contracts for Prog ’
2021 102-500734 Sve $0 $215.655 §215,655
Sub-total $651.368 $215,655; $867.023

Attachment A
Financial Detail
Page 10f2
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Attachment A
Financial Details

North Country Education Services V#154707 PO #1058007
s Fiscal Ravised
tate Fisca Increase/ Decrease Modified
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Bud
Conlracts for Prog
2018 102500734 Sve $175,000 $0 $175,000
Contracls for Prog
2018 102-500734 Sve $172.065 50 $172,065
Contracts for Prog
2020 102-500734 Sve $172.065 $0 $172,065
Contracts for Prog
2021 102-500734 Sve S0 ) $172,065 $172,065
Sub-total $519,130 $172,065] . $691,195
The Upper Room V#174210 PO #1057461
State Fiscal Kevised
ate Flsca ¢ Ingreasel/ Decrease Modifled
Year lass/Account Title Budget Amount _Audast
Contracls for Prog
2018 102-500734 Sve $90,044 $0 $90,044
Contracts for Prog
2019 102-500734 Sve $67,109 $0 $87,109
Contracts for Prog
2020 102-500734 Sve $87,109 $0 $87,109
Conlracts for Prog :
2021 102-500734 Sve $0 $87.109 $87.109
Sub-total $264,262 387,108 $351.371
The Youth Council V#154886 PO #1056421
Revise

Stata Fiscal

. | /D Modifi
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount neroaselDeacrease B?:ll ed
Contracts for Prog
2018 102500734 Sve $130.946 $0 $130.946
Contracts for Prog
2019 102-500734 Se $128.010 $0 $128.010
Contracis for Prog .
2020 102500734 Sve $128,010 50 $128,010
Contracts for Prog
2021 102-500734 Sve $0 $128.010 $128.010
Sub-total $386,966 $128,010 $514,976)
Grand Jotal ’ $2.670.252 $819 327 $3,489,579
Total by Year
Total SFY17 $194,658 $0 $194,658
Total SFY18 $836.940 $0 $836,940
Total SFY19 5819,327 30 $819,327
Total SFY20 $819,327 $0 $818.327
Total SFY21 30 ) 3819327 $819,327
[ Grand Total | i 1 52,670,252 $819,327} $3,489,579]
Total by Agency
Boys & Girds Club of Greater Salem V#160066 PO #1058002 $653,868 $216.488 $870.356
New Hampshire Teen Institule VE166624 PO #1056422 $759,112 $215,655 $974,767
Norh Country Education Services V#154707 PO 41058007 . $519,130 $172,065 $691,195
The Upper Room V#174210 PO #1057461 $301.073 $87,109 $388,182
The Youth Council V#154886 PO #1056421 $437,069 $128.010 $565,079
Total by Agency 32,670,252 $819,327 $3.489,579

Attachment A
Financial Detail
Page 2 of 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

State of New Hampshirs
Department of Haalth and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Suhstance Misuse Prevention Direct Services Contract

This 2™ Amendment to the Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services contract (hereinafter referred to
as “Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Departmant of Health and Human
Services (hereinafier refarred to as the "State” or "Department”) and Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem,
(hersinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprom with a place of business al 3 Geremonty Drive,
Salem, NH, 03079.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the “Contract”") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 23, 2017, (item #20), as amended on June 20, 2018, (item #37), the Contractor agreed to
perorm certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Conlract as amended and
in conslideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Conltract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govermor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as foltows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2021. '

2. Form P-37, General Provlsions Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$670,356.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. Whits, Director. '

J _ 4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Black 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631. ’

5. Add Exhibit B-4, Budget — Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein..

. Boys & Girts Club of Greater Salem . Amendment #2 Conlractor Initiats @
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

Ali terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendment not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval. :

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,
‘ State of New Mampshire .
Department of Health and Human Services

© -/-Ze50

Date me-1atja S. Foxl-

tle: Director

Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem

5. 1g - 2p

Date - 4y Name: AR ROEEIA

Title: | ..
Boys & Girls Ciub of Greater. Salem Amendment #2

RFP-2017-BDAS-04-SUBST-01-A02 Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 9, 2020 : 3 é Zzg é : %
Date Napfe. ‘

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meating on: (date of meeting)

- OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date - : Name:
Title:
~
Boys & Girle Club of Greater Salem Amendment #2

RFP-2017-BDAS-04-SUBST-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
- Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services Contract

This 1* Amendment to the Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services contract (hereinafter referred
to as “Amendment #1") dated this 5™ day of April, 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Departiment of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "he Contractor’), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at 3 Geremonty Drive, Salem, NH, 03079.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Councif
on August 23, 2017, (Item #20), the Contractor'agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

- WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 4 the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executwe
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to exercise a renewal option for up two (2) years and increase the price
limitation to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutua! covenants and oondmons
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: ‘
June 30, 2020. '

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$653,868.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contractlng Officer for State Agency, toread:
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. [Form P-37, General Prowswns Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

~ 603-271-9330.

5. Add Exhibit B-2 Budget — Amendment #1.

6. Add Exhibit B-3, Budget - Amendment #1.

7. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Secpﬁty Reguirements.

Boys and Gids Club of Greater Salem Inc. Amendment #1
- RFP-2017-BDAS-04 : Page 1 of3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services Contract

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Depariment of Health and Human Services

Sho /%

Date : T reSnr
misioner: Dgrp (o

Boys and Girls Club of Greater Salem Inc.

w \¥ | @M

Date Name; mnatos AbRa~
Title: 0. € O.

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of , County of:{?ag;%g_m on Hgn' | &%,3-018, vefore the undersigned officer,

personally appeared the person identified directly ve, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name'is
signed above, and acknowledged that sihe executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

/M /"_“\.

Signatg@p&awm or Justice of the Peace

BETHANNY A. KEANE, Notary Public
My Commisslon Explras Dgcember 3, 2019

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

Boys and Gis Club of Greater Salem Inc. Amendment #1
RFP-2017-BDAS-04 Page 2 0f3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Preventlon Direct Services Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

vl s /ZJ% 'z

Date | Name: Zehecca M Koss
Thle: S nier Asershont™ ktforrsy € €ms red

1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Councll of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of mesting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Tille:
AN
Boys and Girds Ciub of Groater Salem inc. Amendmeni 3]
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements.

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1.

“Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Heaith
Information, * Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

“Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National [nstntute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

“Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data™ means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without jimitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Informatlon and
Personally ldentifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - crealed, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHLI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PF1), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCl), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

"End User” means any person or entity {e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

“HIPAA™ means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1986 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to'a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denlal of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the Joss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electranic

V4, Lasi update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information ‘
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New Hémpshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Informatlon Securlty Requirements

10.

12.

mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disciosure, modification or destruction.

“Open Wireless Network™ means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire’'s Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the fransmission of unencrypted Pi, PFlI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

“Persanal Information” {or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other persanal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place. of birth, mother's malden
name, etc.

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards qu Privacy of Individually |dentifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

“Protected Health Information® (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information® in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic

Protected Health lnformatlon at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. '

“Unsacured Protected Health Information® means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developlng organization that is accredited by
the Amencan Nalional Standards Institute.

l RESPONSIBILlTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1.

2,

The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
excapt as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Conlractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employses and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constltute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4, Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Cantractor Initials #
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K-
DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in respanse to a
subpoena, elc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contraclor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract méy not be used for

any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives

of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm comptiance with the terms of this
Contract.

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the intemet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not.use fils
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data. '

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protecied.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V4. Last updale 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials %Q
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K .
DHHS Information Security Requirements

10.

. hours).
11.

wiréless network, End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
fransmitted or accessed.

SSH File Transfer Protoco! (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
bs coded for 24-hour -auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Dala via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS '

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A.

Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall aiso apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper secusity monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. . The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

V4. Lest update 04.04,2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials %_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure,

B. Disbosition

1.

If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential tnformation on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor wifl maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program

.in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media

sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,.
degaussing) as described In NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards -and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly

“evaluated by the State’and Contractor prior to destruction.

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding. :

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

V. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1.

The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services. : ‘ )

The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Oepartment
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V4. Lasl updale 04.04.2018 ' Exhibit K Contractor |niﬁals$‘
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

10.

M.

The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to.
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

The Contractor will ensure proper security 'monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an intemal process or processes that defines specific . securily
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum

~ match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Depariment system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contraclors prior to
system access being authorized. ‘

If the Department determmes the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate ‘Agreement
{BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement. .

The Coniractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Depariment and -
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Deparlment may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Depariment.

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resuiting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V4. Las! update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Inilials 2& '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

thé breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary.due to
the breach. ' '

Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencles, Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable heailth
information and as applicable under State law.

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitps://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor tearns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire netwark.

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. combly with such safeguérds as referenced in Section IV A, above,
implemented o protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFlare encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent fo and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4, Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials %g
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

Confidential Information received under this Contract and lndlvldually
identiflable- data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

in all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the cnrcumstances involved.

understand that thetr user credentiais (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right fo conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incldents ‘and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor leams of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor’'s compliance with all applicable obhgauons and proeedures
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor wili:

1. ldentrfy Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V4. Last updals 04.04.2018 Exhibil K Contractor Initials %Q
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
- ¢ ExhibitK
DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. '

Incidents andfor Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. '

Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov ‘
. B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

. V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials @
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Paga8of 9 Data M



DocuSign Envelope ID: A1628091-4A05-4602-9C7FD-QOBBSA990EO7

Jelfrey A. Meyers
/ Commissloaer

Katjs & Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council

~ State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-171-6738
Fax: 603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

July 14, 2017

1-300-804-0909

REQUESTED ACTION

b

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

‘Authonze the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into. agreements with
the vendors listed in the table below for the provision of evidenced informed substance misuse
prevention direct services to youth and their parents/caregivers in an amount not to exceed

$395,892. effective upon Gov

ernor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2018.

100% Other Funds.
Vendor Vendor Area Served Total
. Number Amount
: . . Salem, Nashua, and

Boys & Girls Ciub of Greater Salem TBD Sougegan Valley $220,892

North Country Education Services Northern Grafton and

Agency ‘ TBD COOS County $175,000

Total: $395,892

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2018.

05-95-49.920510-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

SFY .| Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount
2018 102/5007 31 Contracts for Program Services 49158504 $395,892
Sub-total SFY17 | $395,892

EXPLANATION
The purpose of this request is enter into two (2) agreements with vendors who will

.provide substance misuse prevention direct services to youth and related programming for
their parents/caregivers. Targets for this program include youth between ten (10) and twenty
(20) years of age who are at risk of engaging in the misuse of alcohol and ilflicit use of drugs.
Risk factors include youth experiencing poor academic performance or behavioral problems at
schoot or that have dropped out of school, that are involved with the juvenile justice system, as
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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well as children whose parents/caregivers are engaged in the active misuse of alcohol and or
illicit drugs.

The opioid epidemic in New Hampshire led to the passage of Senate Bill 533 (2016)
making additional resources available to the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug
Abuse Prevention, Treatment and Recovery. The Commission identified a portion of the
funding allocated under SB $33 for prevention direct services that target youth, such as those
proposed in this request,

The goal of these coniracted prevention programs is 1o defay of the onset and use of
alcohol and drugs and to increase parental knowledge about the negative effects of substance
misuse has on their child(ren), improving parental knowledge and communication skills and to
increase parental monitoring of their child(ren)’s behavior and activities. These programs
promote positive youth development with the goal of preventing and reducing the misuse of
alcohol, marijuana, prescription drugs and apioids.

Each vendor has chosen approved evidenced informed programs that include
education and counseling, as well as information on healthy activities that can be developed
as alternatives to engaging in the misuse of alcohol and drugs and other risky behaviors. -
Programming includes individual or group education and awareness about the serious and -
sometimes deadly consequence of substance misuse and assistance' in helping students
acquire the skills necessary to resist negative peer pressure for using alcohol or other drugs,
their.engagement in the development and promotion of allernative social activities and to
assisl participating youth in developing other mechanisms for coping ‘with stressful
circumstances in their life at home or at school. These programs also involve
parents/caregivers and promote improved communication within the family about this topic.

All vendors providing direct prevention services through these contracts are required to
establish ongoing working collaborative relationships with community based organizations
including, health and social service agencies and schools, as welt as the Regional Public
Health Network in their area. The contractors are also required to conduct outreach to youth
and their parents/caregivers to make them aware of these services and how to access them.

These contracts were competitively bid. The Department published a Request for
Proposal on the Department of Heaith and Human Services website (RFP-2017-BDAS-04-
SUBST) from March 21, 2017 through April 25, 2017, Four (4) proposals were received and
evaluated. Because there is great need for diversified statewide services, the two (2) highest

. scoring were selected to receive funding for proposed services. The bid sheet is attached.

These contracts include language in Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3 that allows the
Department to renew contracted services for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

The Department s goal is that, through these contracts and other complementary
strategies, the State of New Hampshire will experience a reduction in drug misuse prevalence
rates among youth and the related consequences.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, approximately
v 4,000 youth who are at high risk for developing a substance misuse disorder may not have
access to comprehensive substance misuse prevention services,
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Area Served: Statewide:
Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds

In the event that Other Funds become no fonger available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program. '

Respectfully submitted,

YA TS <
Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by: ' M& ) c_

Jotfrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join commuaities ond families in
. providing apportunilies for cilizens to achieve health and independence.




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit
Summary Scoring Sheet

Substance Misuse Prevention Direct

Services RFP-2017-BDAS-04-SUBST
RFP Name RFP Number Reviewer Names
1. Laurie Heath, Business
Administrator IV
Bidder Name Maximum | Actual " 2. Lauren Quann, M.S., TANF
Points Points Program Speclalis!
1 ) : 3, Jamie L. Dali, Sr. Finance
Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. . 400 7 Oirector
. 4. Shannon Quinn, Training
NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network 400 314 Coordinator
3 : 5. JillA. Burke, Chief of
North Country Education Servicos 400 351 Prevention
4 Everfi, inc. ] 400 202 6.

£03066v£9d06-G406-209%-50v+-1 608291 Y QI @doeauz ubisnoog
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
. . 27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Actess: 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet
Commissioner

July 24, 2017 -

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Services :

State of New Hampshire . ' -~
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meycers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency’s request to cnter into contract agreements with two (2) vendors as described
below &nd referenced as Dol T No. 2018-042 and 2018-044, respectively.

The requested action authorizes the Department of Health and Human Services to enter
Into contract agreements with the Boys and Girls Club of Salem and North Country
Education Services Agency to provide substance misuse prevention services for youth

and their parents/carcgivers.
Vendor ‘ Area Served Amount
Boys and Girls Club of Salem,  Nashua and $220,892
Salem Souhegan Valley
North Country Education Rockingham County and $175,000
Services Agency surrounding communities

Total $395,892

The price limitation is a combined total of $395,892, effective uwpon Govemor and
Council approval through June 30, 2018.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Siﬁcercly, .

Denis Goulet

DG/ik
DolT #2018-042 and 2018-044
cc. Bruce Smith, [T Manager, DolT

* "innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow”
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. . FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Substance Misuse Preventi i ice -2017- -Subst-0t

Notice: This agrcement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, conlidential or proprictary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract

. i AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as foliows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. _IDENTIFICATION.
1.} Statc Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3B57

13 Conuactor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem 3 Geremonty Drive
Salem, H 03079
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation ~
Number
(601) 898-7709 Ext. 13 05-95-49-491510-2989 Junc 30, 2048 $220.892
05-95-92-920510-3382
1.9 Conrracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephonec Number
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director 603-271-9246
1.1l Contractor Signatuce 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

MALeo RBRaA -, CAEF Olaranpd CFficor-

S

113" Acknowledgement: State of New Hampshie. County of 'PocHa_v'\OVum

On July 7.8017  beforc the undersigned officer, pcrsonally oppeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven {0 be the person wWhose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowiedged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.-

1.13.1 Signature of Nopgry Public or Justice of the Peace

[Stal)

1132 Name and TitltoT"Nbtary or Justice of the Peace BETHANNY A. KEANE, Notasy Pubfic

iy Cnmmission Expires December 3, 2019
Bethanny A. Kianc | @o&-ai‘j

1.14 Sutc Agency Sigdarure .15 Name and Titlc of Statc Agency Signatory

YT R FZ o7 i 1% S Boxc, D szetor

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Depaniment of Administration, Division of Persartiel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

L.17  Approval by the Attomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

AN i AN M "}/?l//l |

1.18 “ApprovaV 8} the Goverdor anll Bxcgj'livc C‘&mi&! Yir app7i1‘ablc1

By: . Oa:

Page | of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™}, engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™} to pesform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, ideniified and morc panticularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is lncorpomlcd herein by reference
{*Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF 5ERVICES.
3.1 Noiwithstanding any provision of this Agreement'to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Exccutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, i
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the partics
hereunder, shall beeome effective on the date the Governor
end Executive Council approve this Agreemenl as indicated in
block .18, unless no such approval is requircd, in which case
the Agreement shail become effective on the date the
Agreement Is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
).14 (“EfTeclive Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, alt Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agrecment does not
become efective, the State shall have ng liability 1o the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Conlrector must complete all Services by the Completion Date
.specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrecement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liablc for any
payments hercunder in cxcess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment unti} such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreemeat immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
1o the Account identified in block (.6 in the cvent funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT,

5.1 The contract price, mcthod of paymcnl and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in .
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the Stete of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenscs, of whaltever noture incurrcd by the Contractor in the
performance hercof, and shall be the only and-the compleie
compensation to the Conactor for the Services. The State
shall have no (iability to the Contractor other than the contract
ptice.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Coniractor under this Agreement -
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H, RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law,

5.4 Nowwithstanding any provision in this Agrecment (o the
conlrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances. in
no event shall the total of all payments asuthorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limiwtion set forth in block
1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. :

6.1 In conncction with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all staruies, laws, reguiations,
and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal authoritics
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contracior,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and cqual opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
nids and services to ensure that pecsons with communication,
disabilities, including vision, hearing and spcech, cen
communicate with, receive information fom, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual oricntation, of rational origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination,

6.3 If this Agreement is fundcd in any part by monics of the
United Stales, the Contractor shall comply with ali the
provisions of Executive Qrder No. 11246 (*Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemcnted by the
regulations of the United States Depaniment of Labor (41
C.E.R_ Part 60), and with any cules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the Unilted States issue to
implement these ccgulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Stales access to any of the
Contractor's books, tecords and accounts for the purpose of
asccrtaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
end the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreenicnl.

7. PERSONNEL,

‘2.1 The Contractor shal al its own cxpense provide all

personncl necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personne! engaged in the Services shall be-
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all apphcablc
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in wmml.,. during the tcrm of
this Agreement, and for 2 period of six (6) months alter the

- Complction Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shail not hire,

end shal) not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engeged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Swate

. employee or official. who ix moterially involived in the

procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement,

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be (he State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agrcement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shal! be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

3.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Conlractor shall constitute on event of default hereunder
(“Event of Defauh™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit ony repon required hercunder; and/or
$.1.3 failure 1o perform eny other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement,

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defuuly, the State
may tzke any one, or more, or sll, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a writlcn notice specifying the Event
of Defaull and requiring it to be remedied within, in the

absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) .
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Defaultis -

not limely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective iwo
(2) days nftes giving the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a writicn notice specifying the Event
of Default énd suspending all paymeats to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accruce to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such Ume as the State
determings chat the Contractor has cured the Event of Defauk
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe lo
the Contractor any damages the Slalc suffers by reason of any
Event of Defavlt; and/or

8.2.4 wreat the Agceement as brcachcd and pursuc any of its
remedics ut Iaw or in cquity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/
PRESERVATION.
9.1 As uscd in this Agreement, the word “data™ shalt megn al)
" inforenation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, atl studics, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps. chons, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computet programs, COmMpules
printouts, noies, letters, memorands, papers, snd documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreemenl, shall be the property of the Staie, and
shall be retuned to the State upon demand or upon
tevmination of this Agrecment for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chaptler 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of duta
requires prior written opprova) of the State.

Page 3 of 4

10. TERMINATION. [n the event of an carly termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completionof the
Services, the Contractar shall dejiver to ttie Contracting
Officer, not loter thon fificen (15) days afier the date of
termination, a repornt {“Termination Repont™) describing in
detail oll Services performed, and the contracl price camed, 10
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
mauer, content, snd number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXBIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in sl
respects an independent conuractor, snd is neither an agent nos
an employec of the State, Ncither the Contractor nor eny of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate ot recelve any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Siatc to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement withoul the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Scrvices shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. The Conwractor shatl defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Siate, its officers and
employees, from and against any and alf losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and olf claims,
liabilities or penaltics asserted against the State, its officers
und employees, by or on behalf of any person, on sccouns of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed 1o arise ovt 'of) The acts or omissions of the
Contractos. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shalf be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovercign immunity of the State, which immunity is-hcreby
reserved (o the State, This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the teemination of this Agrecment.

14, INSURANCE.

14.] The Contructor shall; at its sole expense, obmm and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontracior or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive peneral liability insurance against all
claims of bodity injury, death or property damage, in amouncs
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
agpregate ; and '
14.1.2 special cause of Joss coverage form covering all
property subject 10 subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparageaph 14,1 hercin shall
be on policy forms and cndossements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Ocpartment of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New

Hampshicc.
Contractor lnitials#
Dat
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14.3 The Contractor shall furish o the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or bis or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required vader this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or bis or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all reaewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurancc and any renewa!ls thereol shall be aitached and are
incocparated herein by ceference. Each cectificate(s) of
insurance shall conmin a clausc requiring the insurer to -
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, ar his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written

~ aoticc of canccllation or modification of the policy.

1S. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warronts that the Contractor.is in compliance with
or exernpt from, the cequirements of N.H. RSA chaptcr 281-A
("Workers' Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Conleactor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shal!
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers* Compensation in .
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
-manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal{s) thercof, which shall be attached and are
incarporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums o for any other claim or benefit for Contracior, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arisc under applicable State 6f New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation Jaws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACR. No (ailure by the Satc to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shail
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State 10 enforec each and ol of the
provisions hercof upon any Further oc other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hercto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly defivered or given at the
time of mailing by-certificd mail, postage prepaid, in 3 United
States Post Office addreased to the partics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein. ’

18. AMENDMENT. This Agrecment may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the partics hereto and only alter approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Goveemor and
Executive Council af the State of New Hampshite unless no

Page 4of4

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant 1o
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshirc, and is binding upon 20d
inures ta the benefit of the pantics and their respective

- successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement

is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual

- intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or

in favor of any parry.
20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benelit any third parties and this Agreement sha!l sot be

- construed 10 confer any such benefit.

28. _HEADINCS. The headings throughbout the Agreement:
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held 10 explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agfeement,

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS, Additional provisions sct
forth in thic attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. I[nthe cvent any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by 8 coust of competent jurisdiction o
be contrary lo any state or federal Jaw, the remaining
provisions of this Agrecment will remain in Full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of countecparts, each of which shall .
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedcs all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initial%;g

Date_3.3. 1%
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services
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Scope of Services
1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide .10 persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
cantract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New

- Hampshire General Cowt or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the

Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service prioritles

and expenduture requlrements under thns Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3.  The Contractor shall provide services o youth, ages ten (10) to seventeen (17), who
are in the Institute of Medicine (1OM) Prevention Classification categories of selective
or indicated and provide parent education for parents/caregivers of the largeted
population, statewide.

14. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Regional Public Health Networks
{RPHN) and community partners In order to engage community service agencies that
are available to youth and parents/caregivers, including but not limited to, Juvenile
Diversion Network programs, alcoho! and other drug services, mental health serv!ces
and housing services.

15, The Contractor shall make appropnate referrals to community providers as needed.
The contractor shall develop and maintain protocols far referrals to appropriate
providers and have such protocols available to the Depastment upon request.

1.6. The Contractor shall ensure funding received under this contract Is used for new
programs.

v 1.7. The Contractor shall maintain separate streams of funding for this and other projects.
2, Scope of Work '

"~ 2.1, The Contraclor shall implement intervention and prevention programs for youth and/or
parents of youth in grades six {6), Seven (7) and eight (8) in a minimum of three (3)
locations, which include but are not limited to:

2.1.1. The Boys and Girs Club of Greater Salern.
2.1.2. The Boys and Girs Club of Greater Nashua,
2.1.3. The Boys and Girls Club of Souhegan Valley.

2.2, The Conlractor shall purchase evidence-based program malerials necessary to
implement Positive Action and Parenting Wisely for three locations. The Contractor
shall purchase:

221, One (1)Grad‘e 6 Positive Action kit.
2.2.2. Two (2) Grade 6 Posilive Action Relresher kits.
2.2.3. Three (3) Grade 7 Posmve Action kits.
2.24. Three (3) Grade 8 Posmve Action kils,

Boys & Girs Club of Greatsr Salemn Exhibit A Conlractor hitu@_
RFP-2017-BDAS-04-Subst -01
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2.2.5,
2.2.6.
2.2.7.

Three (3) Secondary Drug Use Prevention kits.
Two (2) Drug Use Refresher kits.

Three (3) Parenting Wisely agency packages, each contalning:
2.2.7.4. Fifty (50) Oniine Accounts.

22.7.2. Fifty (50) Parent Workbooks.

2.2.7.3. Fifty (60) User Instruction Cards.
2.2.7.4. Two (2) Service Provider Guides.
2.2.7.5. Four (4) Display Posters.

2.2.7.6. Management App Access.

2.2.7.7. Technical Support.

2.2.7.8. Printable Certificates.

2.3. The Contractor shali accept referrals for services from sources thal include, but are

not limited to:

2.3.1. School faculty.
2.3.2. Stafl.

2.3.3. Counselors.
2.34. - Parents,

2.3.5. Guardians.

2.4. The Contractor shall implement Positive Action to @ minimum of 150 individuals who
are in grades 6, 7 and/or 8 who are current members of the Boys and Girls Club at
club tocations identified in Section 2.1. The Contractor shall ensure:

241,
242,

243

Programing is available to individuals Quring after school and summer
programs.

A minimum of 2.5 FTE prevention specialists are avaifable for program
implementation.

Measure outcomes with the use of pre- and posi-tests that are provided with
each program. . :

25 The Contractor shall implement the Parenting Wisely program at each location
identified in Section 2.1 in order to equip parents with the tools necessary to assist
parents with leaming construclive skills that are proven o lessen drug and alcohol

" abuse in youth, school and homework problems, delinquency and other problem
behaviors, and family .conflict. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.5.1. The location in Sectian 2.1.2 targets parents of children attending the Camp.
Mariposa program, .which supports children who have lost a parent to
addiction
2.5.2. Barriers to participation for parents are reduced.by teaming with community
partners to offer incentives to parents who pacticipate, which may include but
are not limited to:
2.5.21. Dinner with child care provided at no cost. A
Boys & Glris Ciub of Greater Salem Exhibit A Contraclor Inilials & 5; 2‘
RFP-2017-BDAS-04-Subst -01
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-25.22. Raffles for healing oil and gas cards.

2523. Give-a-ways such as rolis of quarters for use at laundry facilities
while loaning out a computer wath the parenting program on CD-
ROM.

25.24. Transportation for familles who have issues with getﬂng to the
Boys and Girls Club for parenting events.

253, Aminimum of one (1 ) laptop is available at each location described in Section
2.1 for parents to sign out in order to complete the CD-ROM program.

-2.54, Parents can sign out the CO-ROM program 1o use at their leisure on their

home computers or in the Boys and Girls Club computer lab.

255 Parents have access lo a computer to complete the Parenting Wisely
program while their child{ren) attends Boys and Girls Club programming.

3. Outreach

3.

2

33

3.4.

3.5.

The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities in a variety of methogds that include,
but are not limited to:

3.11, Social media.
3.1.2. Newsletiers.
3.1.3.  Networking with community pariners {o advertise programing.

The Contractor shall ensure the Boys and Gids Club of Greater Nashua canducts
outreach to maintain broad knowledge of available program by:

3.2.1. Sending weekly email updates to a minimum of 950 households.
3.2.2. Malntaining a social media following of 1000 followers.

The Contractor shall ensure the Boys and Girls Club of Souhegan Valley conducls
outreach {o maintain broad knowledge of availabie program by:

3.3.1. Reaching an average of 3,500 homes per month through social media and e-
mails.

3.3.2. Reaching a minimum of 500 parents per month through parent newsletters.

The Contractor shall ensure the Boys & Girs Club of Grater Salem conducts outreach
to maintain broad knowledge of available program by:

3.4.1.  Sending monthly e-mail newsletters to a minimum of 4,800 households.
3.42. Maintaining a social media following of a minimum of 1,495 followers.

The Contractor shall distribute monthly e-mails to the membership database, which
shalt reach a minim of 960 families and ali 2,646 members in order to provide consist
knowledge of programming avaifable through the Boys and Gids Clubs.

4. Evidence Based Programs

4.1,

The Contractor shall utilize the Positive Action Prevention Program which supports
the prevention, intervention and treatment of abuse of substances that include, but
are nol limited to:

4.1.1. Alcohol.

Boys & Girls Club ot Grealer Salem Exhibit A Contractos Iniﬂol@%__
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4.1.2. Tobacco. N
4.1.3. Marijuana.

4.1.4. Methamphetamines.

4,1.5. Oplates.

4.1.6. Slimulanis.

4.1.7. - Steroids.

4.1.8. Hallucinogens.

419, Iphalants.

4.1, 10 Prescription drugs.

: 4.2. The Contractor shall assist individuals increase their awareness of the negative
: consequences of substance misuse through the implementation of the Positive Action
! program, which:
: 4.2.1. Teaches students a basic philosophy regarding the value of positive actions
! and consequences of the negative aclion of substance use.
' 4.2.2. Teaches students on a daily basis of how and why the students can be strong
and live without drugs.
: 4.23. Explains that a positive self-concept is developed only by doing positive
actions, which is a philosophy thal can be applied to any given situation,

; including situations where youth may be pressured to drink, smoke or use
drugs.
4.3. The Contraclor shalf ensure all program activities conducted in the Positive Action
; program are available lo the general cub population, in order to reducs individual
i labeling and increase boding to school and communily, at key transition poinis
; including but not limited to:
: 4.3:1. Transition to middle school.
. 4.3.2. Transition to high school.
; 4.4. The Confractor shall ensure Positive Aclion programing is available in addition to
! other club activates in which the individual may be involved, which may include, but is
: not limited 1o:
4.4.1, Smar Moves.
! 44.2. Money Matters.
"4.4.3. Passpon to Manhood.

444, LUttle Ambassadars Characier Program.

4.4.5. Torch Club Leadership Program.

4.46. Keystone Leadership Program.

44.7. Pawer Hour Homework Help.

4.48. Projectieamn.

4.4.9. Triple Play.

Boys & Glrls Club of Greater Salem ) Exbibit A ‘ Contractor Initsly
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4.4.10. Characler Counts.
4.4.11. Summer Brain Gain.

4.5, The Conlractor shall purchase the Positive Action Drug Education Suppiements Kits
for Secondary Educatijon, which Includes but is not limited,to:

4.5.1. Three (3) to four (4) lessons taught al the end of each unit of grades five (5)
- through eight (8).

4.5.2. The play, Escape from the Shadows that takes a metaphorical approach to
being drug-free and avoiding behaviors that can lead to addiction.

4.5.3. Materials for 30 individuals.
4.5.4, Posters and hands-on materials.

4.6. The Contractor shall implement Parenting Wisely at sites idenlified in Section 2.1,
which is 8 computer-based lraining program for parents of children ages 3 through 18 .
years based on social leaming, cognilive behavior, and famity systems theories, in
order to increase parental communication and disciplinary skills. The Contractor
shall:

46.1. Ensure parenis understand that the program Includes nine (9) sessions
lasting approximately 2 to 3 hours thal consist of:

4.6.1.1. Viewing a video enactment of a typical family struggle.

4.6.1.2. Choosing from a list of solutions representing different levels of
effectiveness, each of which are critiqued lhrough questions and
answers,

4.6.1.3. A quiz at the end of each session.

4.6.1.4. A workbook thal contains program content and exercises to
promote skill building and practice.

4.6.2. Include suggestions and parenting tips from the Parenting Wisely program in
newsielters at all snes in order to:

4.6.2.1. Recruit and promota parents to pamc:pale in the full program.

46.22. Share knowledge from the program in a broad manner in order to
reduce isolation of parents who may want to participate.

4.6:3. Minimize barriers to paricipation, which may include, bul is not limited to:

46.3.1. No cos! childcare for parents who which to patticipate in’ the
program on-site.

453.2. Alowing parents to sign out the CD-ROM set to wewlcomplele on
thelr home computers.

4.6.33. Allowing parents to sign out a laptop in order to view/complete the
program sl their convenience.

4.6.3.4. Providing transportation.
4.6.3.5. Partnering with local entitles to:

4.6.3.5.1. Provide assistance in informing parenls about
Parenting Wisely.

Boys 8-Glrls Club of Greater Salem Exhinlt A Contraclor Ini \
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464

4.6.3.5.2. Provide incentives including, but not limited to, gift
cards to local businasses that can be given to
participants upon completion of the program.

Ensure a Prevention Specialist oversees program activities for Positive ‘Action
and Parenting Wisely. The Caontractor shall monitor:

4.6.4.1. Program lending practices.
4.6.4.2. Progress made by participants.
4.6.4.3. Challenges encountered by participants and staff.

46.4.4, Completion of the program, including printing and awarding
Caertificates of Completion.

4.7, The Contraclor shall ensure fidelty with best practices by:

471,

4.74,

5. Staffing

4.7.2.
47.3.

475

Following recommended implementation processes by the developers and
trainers of Positive Acllons and Parenting Wisely.

Utillzing checklists.

Coliaborating with the NH Center for Excellence in order 1o implement pre-
and post-lests, surveys and other evaluation and measurement tools
available.

Consulting with partners at Posilive Active and Parenting Wisely, as needed,
utilizing a maximum of six (6) hours of technical assistance from Positive
Action consuitants.

Utilize ‘train-the-trainer’ techniques at sites identified in Section 2.1 1o ensure
new staff are trained in both programs.

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure Certified Prevention Specialist minimum staffing levels
Include, but are not limited to:

51.1.
- 5.1.2

513,

One (1) Full Time Certified Prevention Specialfst is on staff at the Greater
Nashua location.

One (1) Full Time Certified Prevention Specialist is on staff at the Greater
Nashua location.

One (1) Half Time Certified Prevention Specialist is on staff at the Souhegan
Valiey location,

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure minimum staffing levels are available at each location
identified in Section 2.1 as follows:

521,
5.2.2.

523

Four (4) Full Time staff trained to administer the Positive Action Program at
the Boys and Girs Club of Greater Salem.

Tweo (2) Full Time stafl and three (3) Part Time staff are trained to adm:mster
the Positive Action Program at the Boys and Girls Club of Souhegan Valley.

Nine (9) Full Time staff are trained to administer the Pasilive Action Program
at the Boys and Girls Club of Greater Nashua.

Boys & Girls Ciub of Greater Safem Exhibit A Contractor lni:m%Q_

RFP-2017-BDAS-04-Subst -01

Pege 6ol 10 : ‘Oate 9 2| k



DocuSign Envelope ID: A1628091-4A05-4602-9CFD-30BB3A990E07

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Misuse Prevention Direct Services

Exhibit A

53. The Contractor shall ensure each prevention specialist in Section 5.1 altends a
minimum of eight (8) trainings with the NH Training Institute on Addictive Disorders,

54. The Contractor shall ensure each prevention specialist in Section 5.1 attends a
- minimum of ane (1) education conference.

5.5. The Contractor shall ensure each prevention specialiﬁ! in Section 5.1.2 and Seclion
5.1.3 oblains CPS Cerification,

. Wofkplanﬂ'imetable
6.1.

The Contraclor shall provide services within timeframes as indicated in the timeline

below:

Benchmarks Deliverables Timeline
Stlatewide .
acknowledgement of BGCs | Press Release of Award Upon contract effective

as partners in prevention

date.

Qrder Positive Action and
, PW Materials for all BGCs

Acquire Materials lo Implement
Program

No later than two (2)
weeks from the contract
effective date.

Oetermine Cultural .
Adaptations needed

Make cullural adaptations needed

No laler than two (2)
weeks from the contract
effective date.

Advertise open positions

Hire Prevention Speciallsts

No later than forty-five
(45) days from the
contract effective date,

Develop Marketing Material
for alt BGCs for Positive
Action and PW Pragrams

Market Positive Action and Parenting
Wisely Programs at all sites

No later than forty-five
(45) days from the
contract effective date.

Register youth {n Positive
Action Program at each site

Implement pragram

September 2017

Begin enralling parents in
PW program

implement program

September 2017

implementation continues at
each sile

60 youth will participate in Positive
Action at Greater Salem, 60 youth at
Greater Nashua, and 30 youth at
Souhegan Valley.

30 Parents/Guardians will participate

in Parenting Wisely at Greater Salem,

25 at Greater Nashua and 20 al
Sauhegan Valley

September 2017 to
contract completion

Leaming Collaborative

Increase skills and knowledge of
staff at BGCs.

As requlred by the
Departiment.

Boys & Girls Club of Greatar Selem
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6.2.

The Contractor shall submit a final workplan with specific dates of events to the
Depariment for approval within 10 days of the contract effeclive date.

7. Deliverables

7.4,

1.2

7.4.

75.

13.

The Contractor. shall purchase all kits to_implement the Positive Action program at
three (3) Boys and Girls Club sites identified in Section 2.1 na later than ten (10)
business days from the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall purchase all kits to implement the Positive Parenting program at
three (3) Boys and Girls Club ‘sites identified in Section 2.1 no later than ten (10)
business days from the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall purchase one (1) leptop for each location identified in Section
2.1 for a total of three (3) laptops no later than fourteen (14) business days (rom the
contract effective date.

_ The Contractor shall provide the Paslilive Action program to a minimum of one

hundred fifty (150) youth of which:

7.4.1. A minimum of sixty (60) shall be from the Boys and Girls Club of Greater
. Salem.

74.2. A minimum*of sixty (60) shall be from the Boys end Girls Club of Greater
Nashua,

7.4.3. A minimum of thity (30) shall be from the Boys and Girls Club of the
Souhegan Valley.

The Centractar shall provide the Parenting Wisely program to a minimum of seventy-

- .five (75) parents of which:

7.5.1. A minimum of thirty (30) shall be from the Boys and Giris Club of Greater
Salem.

7.5.2. A minimum of twenty-five (25) shall be from the Boys and Girls Club.of
Greater Nashua.

7.5.3. A minimum of twenty (20) shall be from the Boys and Girls Club of the
Souhegan Valley.

8. Performance Meastures . :

8.2.
i 8.3.
‘ 8.4.

8.5.

8.1.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of program appiications include a consent form for
youth fo participate in the Posltive Action program at each site identified in Section 2.1.

The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of twenty (20) major community partners are

' involved with program activities during the contract period.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of employees receiving funding from this
agreement become Cerlified Prevention Specialist.

Local schools and community partners will teporl an increase in participation in
community and school activities by program participants.

As a result of parbcnpatrng in the programs and serwces funded by this contract
participants shall, at a minimum, demanstrate;

8.5.1. Increase in perceplion of harm/risk of the use of substances;

Buys & Ginis Club of Grealer Salem Exhiblt A Contraclor |n‘»um@__
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8.5.2. Increase in perception of peer or parental/caregiver disapproval on the use of
substances, .

8.5.3. Increase in parental efficacy; and
8.5.4. Increase in parental communication and monitoring.
9. Participant Survey

8.1. The Contractor shall administer a survey, supplied by the Depariment, to all
individuals participating in the selecled service,

9.2. The Contractor shall ensure participants who complete the intervention fully compiete
all components of the survey design. The Contractor shall:

9.2.1. Provide Instruction to participants on the importance of completing the
Department provided survey according to the Department instructions.

9.2.2. Ensure the survey administration process Includes the process for acquinng
consent from program participants in the evaluation and in compliance with
the Department’s palicles and protocols.

9.2.3.  Survey a minimum of eighty percent (80%) of program participants.
10.Data Storage and Reporting

10.1.1. The Contractor shall develop a system to safely store and maintain survey data
In compliance with the Department's policies and protocols.

10.1.2. The Contractor shall be required to enter the completed survey data intc a
database provided by the Depariment. Survey data will be provided to the
Department's contracted entity to provide evaluation,

10.1.3. The Contractor shall input data on a monthly basis to an online database as
required by the Depariment. The Department will provide training on the use of
the database system. The data includes, but is not limited to:

10.1.3.1. Number of individuals served; ’
10.1.3.2. BDemographics of individuals served;
1‘0.1.3.3. Types of strategies or interventions implemented; and

10.1.3.4. Dollar amount and type. of funds used in the impiementation of strategies
andl/or interventions

10.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with all data reporting requirements
including, but not limited to;
10.1.4.1. The ability to communicate and submit required reports via email.

10.1.4.2. The ability 1o submit the following repcrts in formats approved and/or
provided by the Department:
10.1.4.2.1. Enter and complete monthly data reporting in the New Hampshire
Prevention Web Information Technology System (P-WITS) within
twenty (20) working days of the end of the previous month, e.g.
July data will be entered fully by August 20™;

Boys & Girls Ciub of Greater Salem Exhibit A Contractor Initials
RFP-2017-BDAS-04-Subst -01
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Exhibit A

10.1.4.2.2. Submit monthly expenditure reports for reimbursement of costs
associaled with contract activities by the 20" business day
following the end cof the previous month,

10.1.5. All data related exchanges, standards, policies, systems elc. may, at the sole
discretion of the Department, be reviewed by the Department and/or the
Department of Information Technology (DolT) lo assess conformance with
Department and DolT information security/privacy standards.

10.1.5.1. The Conlractor agrees 1o remedy, {o the satisfaction of the Department
andfor DolT, any substantlal non-conformance Identified.

Ty

Boys & Girls Ciub of Greater Salem Exnibit A Contractar lnidﬂs@_
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Method and‘CondItions Precedent to Payment

1. The Department shall pay the Contractor an amount not 1o exceed the Price Limitation on Form
P-37. Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contraclor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

2. Funding for this contract is.100% Other Funds (Govemor's Commissian on Alcoho! and other
Drug Prevention, Treatment, and Recovery).

3. The Contractor shail provide the services in Exhlbit A, Scope of Servaces, in compliance with
funding requirements.

4. Payment far Services shall be made as follows:

4.1.  The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices and any attendant reports by the 15" of
each month.

4.2. Expenses shall be reported for reimbursement by budget line item In accordance with
Exhiblt B-1 and Exhibit B-2 with invoice template supplied by the State.

43. The Department shall make payment 10 the Conlractor within thifty (30) days of receipt of
Invoices and reports for contract services provided pursuant to this Agreemem

44.  Invoices and reports identified in Section 4 shall be submiited to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

105 Pleasant Streetl

Concord, NH 03301

5. Payments may be withheld pending recelpt of required reports or documentation as Identified in
Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days after the end of the
contract. Failure to submit the Financlal Report, and accampanylng documentalion, couid result
" In non-payment.

7. Nowwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, In whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any Staté or
Federal Jaw, rule, or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the sald services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to

_transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be made by written

agreement of both partles and may be made without obtaimng approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Baoys & Glris Club of Greater Salem Exhibit B . Contracior Initfal
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obillgations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to ellgible
individuals angd, in the furtherance of the aforesaid cavenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Feders! and State Laws: If the Contractor is pemmitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibflity determination shall be made in accordance with appficable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guideline's, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibllity determinations shall be made on {orms provided by
the Deparntment for that purpose and shalt be made and remade at such limes as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Depariment, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility delermination and such other informallon as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eliglbllity determinations that the Depatment may request or require.

4, Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding thal determination. The
Contractor hereby covenanis and agrees thal al) applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each spplicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department reguiations.

S. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a beeach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuily or offer of employmaent on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Cantractor or.
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhlbit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-conlract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officlals, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor,

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding ‘anything lo the contrary conlained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the pariies
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to relmburse the Contractor for costs incured for
any purpose or for any services provided o any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Conlractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individua! applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the

* federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is efigible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Conlract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Depariment 1o purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Cantractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rale which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. if at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Repon hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment

. in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor ta ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Depariment may elect lo:
7.1, Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rales shall be established:;
7.2.  Deduct from any fulure payment lo the Contractor the amount of any prior seimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Frovisions Conlractor lnhlals@__
e SN

oM Page1al s Date 3



DocuSign Envelope 1D: A1628091-4A05-4602-9CFD-30BB3A9S0EQ7

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Damand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure 1o make
such repayment shal! constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Conltactor is
permitied to determine (he eligbility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for al) funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided 1o any individual who Is found by the Departmani 10 be ineligibie for such services at
any Ume during the perdod of retention o( records established herein.

. RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibllity racords specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the foliowing records during the Coniract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting &ll costs
- and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and al}

income received or callected by the Contractor duting the Contract Petiod, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptabla {0 the Depaniment, and
lo include, without limitation, all ladgers, books, records, and criginal evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventortes, vatuations of

X in-kind contributions, labor time cards, paymus. and other records requested or required by the

1 Department.

' 8.2. Staystcal Records: Stalisucal enraliment, attandance or visit records for each recxpfent of
servicas during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibliity (including all forms required 1o detemmina eligibility for each such recipient), records

. regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to oblain

: payment far such services.

: 8.3. Modica! Records; Where appropriate and ps prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contraclor shall retain medical records on each patienVredplent of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the pravision of
Office ot Mansgement and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizalions,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Actounting Otfice (GAO standards) as
they pertain o financial compliance audits.

8.1, Audit and Review: During the lerm of this Conlract and the period for relention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Depariment of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designaled representatives shall have access (o all reporis and recards maintained pursuant to
the Corract for purposes of audit, examinalion, excerpls and transcripts.

9.2.  Audit Liabililes: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shail be held liabls for any state
or {ederal audit exceptions and shall return tothe Department, all payments mede undet the
Conlract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidantiality of Records: All informalion, reports, and records maintained hereunder ar collectad
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Departmeant regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made (o
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official dulies and for purposes
direclly connected to the edministration of the sarvices and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connecled with the administration of the Deparlment or the Contraclor’s responsibilities with
respact {0 purchased services hereunder is prohibiled except on wrillen consent of the recipient, his
atlorney or guardian.

Exhitil C ~ Speclal Pravisions
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1.

Notwithstanding anything ta the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions cantained (n
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following teports al the following

limes if requested by the Department.

11.1. Intedm Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports contalning a detailed description of
all costs and non-gllowable expenses incurred by the Contractar to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satistactary by the Depantment to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
dasignated by the Department or deemed salisfaciory by the Depanment.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term

12.

13.

4.

15.

16.

of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory 1o the Department end shail
contain a summary stalement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such abligations as,
by the lerms of the Contract are to be performed afier the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Conlractor as
costs hereunder the Depariment shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor,

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resutting from the performance of the services of the Contract shali include the following
statement; ’

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document elc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stste
of New Hampshire, Oepariment of Health and Human Sarvices, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding soutces as were available of
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distributlon or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
pricr written approval from DHHS,

Operation of Facilitles: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any facilitles
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with alt 1aws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contraclor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental ticense or -
permit shall be required for the operation of the sald facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permilt, and will al all mes comply with the 1erms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the tern of this Contract the facifities shafl
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with {ocal building and zoning codes, by-
{aws and reguiations. :

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCRY), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. M the racipiant receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

E€xhiblt C ~ Specinl Provisiens Contracior Initials @_
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19.

18.

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certitying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the reciplent will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR cerlifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational instituions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certificalon form to the OCR te claim the exemption.
EEOP Cerlification Forms are avallable at: http:/fiwww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdt.

. Limitad English Proficioncy (LEP): ‘As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access lo

Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationa! origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of imited Engfish proficiency (LEP). To ensurs
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Titie VI of the Clvil

. Rights Act of 1964, Contraclors must lake reasonable steps lo ensure that LEP persons hava

meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contraclor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as definad in 48
CFR 2.101 (curremly, $150,000) .

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WrﬂSTLEaLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TQ INFORM EMPLOYEES OF .
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower nghts
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established al
41:U.5.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce, -
of employee whistieblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in saction
3.908 of the Federal Acqulsitlon Regulation,

{c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, mcludmg this patagraph {c}), in all
subgontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with

greater expentise to perform certain health care servicas or tunctions for efficiency or convenience,

but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to

subcontracling, the Conlractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the defegated -

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement tha! specifies activilies and reporting

responsibilites of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontraclor's performance is not adequate. Subcontraclors are subject to the same cantractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible 1o ensure subcontraclor compliance

with those condilions.

When the Contraclor delegates a funclion to a subconlractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the aclivities, belore delegating

. the function

19.2. Have a wrilten agreement with lhe subcontractor that specdifies activilies and reporting
responsibilities and how sanclions/revocalion will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

18.3, Monitor the subcontraclor's performance on an ongoing basis

. Exhibit C —~ Spacial Provisions Contracior Inmabg__
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19.4. Provide o DHHS an annuat schedule Identitying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilties, and when the subcontraclor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcomracts.

it the Contractor identifies deficlencles or areas for Improvement are identifted, the Contractor shall
take corrective aclion.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Coniract, the !onowing terms shall have the loﬂowmg ‘meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and relmbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Conlracto} Manua!l which s
entitled “Financia) Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial
aclivities of contractor agencles which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shalt mean the document submitied by the Contractor on a form of forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contratt and setling forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of ime or that specified activily determined by the Departiment and spegcified in Exhibit 8 of the
Contract.

FEDERALSSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulalions, rules, orders, and policles, elc. are
relerred 10 In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, reguiations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time lo time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Depanmenl of Administrative
Services contalning a compilation of alf regulations promuigated pursuant to the New Hampshire -
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for he purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regutations pramulgated thereunder. )

SUPPLANTING QTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these servicas.

Extiblt € - Speclal Provisions Contractor lnmaé%g;
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4.

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. '

Notwithstanding any provisian of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in pan,
under this Agreement are contingent upan cantinued appropriation of availabiity of funds,
Including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federa! legislative or execulive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the sppropriation or availabllity of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, In whele or in pan. In no event shall the
State be liable for sny payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropnated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment untif such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or madify services.under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or madification,
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from: any other source or accaunt into the
Accaunt(s) ldentified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number. or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2.  Subparagraph 10 of the General Provlslons of this contract, Tarmination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1

102

103

104

10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the scle discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising ils
option to tamiinate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of eary
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transllion Plsn for services under the
Agreement, including but not fimited to, identifying the present and future needs of cllents
receiving services under the Agreement and establishas a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detalled
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not fimited to, any information or
data requested by the State selaled to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide angoing communication and revisions of the Transubon Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the Stats, the Conlractor shall provide a process for

“uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a8 method of notifying ¢clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Convactor shall include the proposed communications In its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3.  The Depariment reserves the right to renew the contract for up to two (2) additional years subject
to the continued avallability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Govemnor and Executive Council. '

CUOHASN1071)
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of lhe Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1888 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.5.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees ¢ have the Contraclor's represenialive, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE ( - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CdNTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-630, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The.January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part )i of the May 25, 19980 Federa! Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-

. contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Sectfon 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) thal is 3 State
may elect 1o make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification, The certificate set out belowis a
material representalion of fact upan which reliance is placed when the agency swards the grant. False
certification or vio)ation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors uslng this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Depantiment of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee cerlifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: .

1.1, Publishing a statement nolifying employees that the unlawful manufaclure, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the sctions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2, Establishing an ongoing drug-lree awareness program lo inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuss in the workplace,

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penaliies that may be imposed upon employses for drug abuse violations
occurring In the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in Lthe performance of the grant be
givan 8 copy of the statement required by paragraph {a);

1.4.  Nolilying the employee in the statement required by paragraph {a) thal, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
14.2.  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later, than five calendar days after such
conviclion;

1.5.  Nolifying the agency in wriling, within 1en calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual nolice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide nolice, including position title, lo every grant
officer on whose grant aclivity the convicted employee was warking, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D ~ Certification regarding Drug Fres Contractor Initials
Workplace Requirements
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has designated a cantral point for the receipt of such notices, Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the lollowing actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving nolice under
.. subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is 50 convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnef aclion against such an employee, up to-and mcluding
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; ar
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to pamupate satisfaclorily-in 3 drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith atfort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantea may insert [n the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

" Place of Performance (streel address, city, county, stale, Zip code) (iis! each location)

Check U if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
1-4.13 é( -
Date Name: $hkRao ARG S A

Thie: caeF SReaemisr e Wl oy

Exhibit O ~ Certification (egarding Orug Free Contraclot Mnitiafs @&
. Workplace Requirements
CUDHHS 10713 - Page 2 of 2 . Oate _ % - 3 A7




DocuSign Envelope ID: A1628091-4A05-4602-3CF D-30BB3A990EQ7

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Sectlon 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contactor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the {ollowing Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
.US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered).

*‘Temparary Assistance to Needy Famillies under Title IV-A

*Child Suppaort Enforcement Program under Title {V-D |
*Sacial Services Block Grant Program under Title XX

*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Communily Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Gramt under Tite IV

The undersigned centifies, to the best of his or her knowiedge and belief, that:

1. No Federal apprapriated funds have been pald or wili be paid by or on behalf of the undetsigned, to
any person lor influencing or attempling lo inlluence an officer ar employes of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an 6llicer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
conneclion with the awarding of any Federal conlract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mentlon
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. [fany funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been pald or will be paid tc any person for
influencing or attempling to Influence an officet or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer ar employee of Congress, or an employes of a Member of Congress in connection with this ™
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {(and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor}, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Repart Lobbying, In accordance with 115 instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-.}

3. The undersigned shall require thal the 1anguage of this cerlificalion be induded in the award
documant for sub-awards a! all tiers (Including subconiracts, sub-grants, and conliracts under grants,
loans, and cooperalive agreements) and that all sub-recipients shali certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was mads or entared into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or enlenng into this
transaction imposed by Seclion 1352, Tite 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
cartificalion shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $40,000 and not more than $100,000 (ar
each such failure. ‘

Contractor Name:

13-V _
Date - Nemeljiaves ARG
' TWE: L eF PeRanon oFFILEL-

Exhiplt € -~ Caerlfication Regarding Lobdbying Contractor initials %ﬁ‘
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; : CERYIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
. AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

: The Conlractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

. Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Pan 76 regarding Debarmant,

' ' Suspension, and Other Responsibllity Matters, and further agrees lo have the Contractor's

; reprasentative, as ldentified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foflowing
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitling this proposal (contracl) the prospective primary particlpant Is pmvldmg the’
certification set out below.

"ot e

2. The inabifity of a person lo provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denlal
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the cerlification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, faiture of the prospective primary

i participant 1o fumish a ¢entlfication or an explanation shall disquaflfy such person from participation in

this transaction.

3. The cedification in this clause is a material represantation of fact ypon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Info this transaction. (f it is {ater detenmnined that the prospective.
primary participant knowingty rendered an erroneous certification, in addition 1o other remedies
available to the Federal Govemment, DHHS may lerminate this transaction for cause or defaulit.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written nolice to the DHHS agency to
- whom this proposal {contract) is submitted if sl any time the prospeclive primary participant leams
that ts certification was erroneous when submitted of has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. Thelerms “covered ransaction,” “debarred,” *suspended,” “Ineligible,” “fower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” "proposal,” and

“voluntarity exciuded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and -

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. - See the

attached definitions.

PO U S

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, shoutd the
praposed covered fransaction be entered into, it shall nat knowingty enter into any tower tier covesed
transaélion with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary paricipant lurther agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause litted *Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covared Transactions,” provided by DRHS, without modification, in all tower lier covered
lransactions and In all solicitations for lower Yer covered {ransactlons. ‘

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered ansaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntanly excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
dacide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing confained in the faregoing shall be construed to }equire establishment of a system of records
in ordes 1o render in good faith the oenmcalion required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhlbﬂ F - Conificaion Regarding Dedbarment, Suspanuon Contracior Initlas %L
And Other Regponsibifity Maticrs . 1
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informatlon of a participant is not required to exceed that which s normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for ransactions autharized under.paragraph € of (hese instructions, i a paricipantin a
covered ransaction knowingly eniers into a lower Uer covered ransaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, inefigible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this tansaction, in
addition 1o other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transactlon
for cause or default. .

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary padicipant certifies 1o the besl of s knowiedge and belief, thatit and its
principals:

11.1. are not presenly debarred, suspended proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a threa-year period preceding this proposal (coniract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminat offense in
connectlion with obtaining, attempting !0 obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or logal)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; viotation of Federal ar State antitrust
slatules or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, faisification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not prasently indicted for otherwise ciiminally or clvilly charged by a govemmental enlty
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I){b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year peniod preceding this application/proposal had ons or more public
transactions {Federa), Stata or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
cerlification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this psoposal {contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower lier proposal {contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledga and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared inefigible, or
valuntarily excluded from participation in this transaclion by eny federal department or agency.
13.2. where the praspective lower tier participant Is unable lo cerify to any of \he above, such |
prospective participant shall altach an explanation to this proposal {(contract).

14. The prospeclive lower lier paricipant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
fnclude this clause entitied “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inellgibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in a!l lower lier covered
trapsactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: (.'ux‘b ‘\ G Qb of GRgTa- SRLEMN

J99% &

Dats : Name: ARCS oA
Tite! Cog¥™  cpoeRtan OFALEE

Exhibil F - Cestificalinn Regardlng Debarmeni, Suspension Contractar initia!
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, : CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE W{TH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

: FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORG@N!ZA! IONS AND
i . WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Seclions 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following *
certification:

Contrai:tor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comp!y. with any applicable
federal nondiscriminalion requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Conbrol and Safe Streets Act of 1888 {42 U, S.C. Section 37 89d) which prohibits

recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in

the deltvery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, nationa!l onigin, and sex. The Act
' requires certain reciplents to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Secuon 6672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices ot In the delivery of services of
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportundy Plan requirements;-

- the Civil Rights Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federa! financia)
assistance from discriminating on the basts of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity),

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1873 (28 U.S.C. Section 784), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to empioyment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity; '

- the Ameritans with Disabiliies Act of 1890 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opporiunity fof persons with disabliities in employment, State and local
govemnment services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1872 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-88), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6108-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities recelving Federa! financlal assistance. It does not Inciude
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regutations'~ OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations = Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 {equal protection of the taws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No, $3559, which provide fundamental prnciples and pohcy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-238, enacted January 2, 2013} the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisa) for certain whistle blowing aclivities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material tepre sentation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or viclation of the certification shall be greunds for
suspension of payments, suspenswn or termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debamnent.

Exhibit G .
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in the event a Federaj or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a linding of
discrimination afier a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a reciplent of funds, the reciplent will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Clvil Rights, to
the gpplicable contracting agency or division within the Oepartment of Health and Human Services, and
1o the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

Tne Contractor identified in Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as [dentified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, o execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above, ' ‘ :

Contractor Name: V,u,(, 4\ CnPs CLng, ofF Qeorrer

ShALorA~
2\ I

Date Name: A A fetA
Tille: (AeF cPepnnEG OFFcer

Exhibit G
Contracior inltigls
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used roulinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are tunded by Fedstal programs either
directly ar through State or local govermnments, by Federai grant, contract, loan, or loan guaraniee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private rasidences, facililies funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatmen!. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/ar the imposition of an administrative compliance otder on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of tha General Provisions, 1o execute the following
certification:

. 1. By signing and submilting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply

i with all applicable pravisions of Public Law 103-227, Pan C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1594,

Contractor Nama: ’%q,‘s \ Qs Cung OF GReiTel

tam =

Date Name: Moo Alfar .
’ Title: G leF HSENNG OFR LS

Exhiblt H — Certification Regarding Contractor lnitals
Environmental Tobacco Smake
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees lo
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually tdentifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Assoclate” shall mean the Conlractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
recelve, use or have access to protected heaith information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services,

(1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulalions.

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the.meaning glven such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
" Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designpated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set"
‘in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Dala Aqgregation® shall have the same meanlng as lhe term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

. “Health Care Operalions” shail have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Sectlon 164.501.

9. "HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleX)ll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvesiment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA®" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1'996, Public Law
104-181 and the Standards for Privacy and Securily of Individually identifiable Health
Informalion, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “lpdividual® shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Ryle® shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information creatsd or received by.

Business Associate from or on behall of Covered Entity.
32014 : Exnibit | Contracior |niua|@e_

Heslih Insurance Porablilty Act

Buslhess Associate Agreement
Page 10of 6 Dale 3 zn’ ’



DocuSign Envelope ID: A1628091-4A05-4602-9CFD-90BB3A990EQ7

New Hampshire Department of Health and Humnan Services

Exhibit !

“Reguired by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164, 103

. "Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Depariment of Health and Human Services or A

his/her designee.

-

“Securty Rule® shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Heatlth Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Heallh Information” means protected heaith information that Is not

-secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusgble,

(2)

unreadable, of indecipherable 1o unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Deafinitions - All terms not otherwise defined harein shall have the meaning
astablished under 45 C F.R. Parls 160, 162 and 164, as amended Irom time 10 time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Assoclate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information,

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintaln or transmit Protected Health

fnformation (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under

Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Assaciate, including but not limited to all

its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
© PHlin any manner 1ha( would constilute a vialation of the Privacy and Security Rula.

Business Assoclate may use or disclose PHI;
l. For the proper management and adm:mstratson of the Business Associate;
U, As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forih in paragraph d. below; or
Il.  -For data aggregation purposes for the heaith care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Assaciale is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHi to a
third party, Business Associate must aobtain, prior 10 making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI| will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreament from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Secunty, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the exten! it has abtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necassary to
provide services under Exhiblt A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in respansato a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by taw, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opporiunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate refief. 1f Covered Entily objects to such disclosure, the Business

312014 » Exhibitd Contractor umu%g_
. Healh insurancs Ponability Act
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PH! untif Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

if the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by addltional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shafl not disclose PH) in violalion of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Aetivities of Business Assaclate,

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s anacy Officer Immedialefy
after the Buslness Assoclate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Assoclate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nalure and extent of the protected health infarmation involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the liketihood of re-identlfication;

o The unauthorized person used tha protected health infonmation or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health infarmation has been
mitigated.

The Business Assoclate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Natification Rule.

Business Associate shall make avallable all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for

. purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and

Security Rule.

Business Associale shall require alt of its business associates thal receive, use or have
access to PH! under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same

restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHi contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Enlity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Conltracior's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHi

’ Exhibi i Contractor Iniliats
Health Insurance Portadility Act

Business Associate Agreement
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
: contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and dnsdosure of

‘ . protected health information,

. f. Within five (5) business days of receip! of a written request from Covered Entity, -

. Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours st its offices al
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disc¢losure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Cavered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

- g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving & written request from Covered Entity,

- Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in.a Designated Record Set to the

' Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
: requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10} business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
- amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Deslgnated Record
s Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Enlity for
.amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfil its
obligations under 45 CFR Sectlion 164.526.

i Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to e request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528..

J: Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Assaciate shalt make available
to Covered Entity such information as Caovered Enlity may require 1o fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHi in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164,528.

k. in the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
direclly from the Business Assaciate, the Business Assaciate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Enlity, Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Assoctate 1o violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Assoclate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as praclicable.

. Within ten (10} business days of termination of the Agreement,‘ for any reason, the
Business Associale shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI .
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in conneclion with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. if retumn or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed toin -
the Agreement, Business Associate shalt continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and timit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associale mainlains such PHL. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to -
Covered Entity that the PH} has been destroyed.

- (4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes of limitatian(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Inglviduals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, {0 the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Assoclale of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursvant to 45 CFR Secnon
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. ‘Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disctosure of PHi that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

{5) YemInation for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Enlity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneocus

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Securily Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Seclion as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Enlity and Business Associate agree to take such action asis
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entty to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Secunty Rule, ang applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate ac